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the cover page and certain typographical errors on page 37 of the original Form
10-K filed on January 29, 2002.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Factors That Could Affect Future
Results" set forth in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7, contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that,
if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause the results of
Hewlett-Packard Company and its consolidated subsidiaries ("HP" or the
"Company") to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical
fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including
any projections of earnings, revenues or other financial items; any statements
of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations;
any statement concerning proposed new products, services or developments; any
statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements
of belief; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing.
The risks, uncertainties and assumptions referred to above include the
challenge of managing asset levels, including inventory; the difficulty of
keeping expense growth at modest levels while increasing revenues; and other
risks that are described from time to time in HP's Securities and Exchange
Commission reports, including but not limited to the items discussed in
"Factors That Could Affect Future Results" set forth in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in
Item 7 in this report. HP assumes no obligation and does not intend to update
these forward-looking statements.

PART I

ITEM 1. Business.
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HP was incorporated in 1947 under the laws of the State of California as the
successor to a partnership founded in 1939 by William R. Hewlett and David
Packard. Effective in May 1998, we changed our state of incorporation from
California to Delaware.

We are a leading global provider of computing, printing and imaging
solutions and services for business and home, and are focused on making
technology and its benefits accessible to all.

As of October 31, 2001, our major business segments included Imaging and
Printing Systems, Computing Systems and Information Technology Services ("IT
Services") .

Imaging and Printing Systems provides printer hardware, supplies, imaging
products and related professional and consulting services. Printer
hardware consists of laser and inkjet printing devices, which include
color and monochrome printers for the business and home, multi-function
laser devices and wide- and large—-format inkjet printers. Supplies offer
laser and inkjet printer cartridges and other related printing media.
Imaging products include all-in-one inkjet devices, scanners, digital
photography products, personal color copiers and faxes. Professional and
consulting services are provided to customers on the optimal use of
printing and imaging assets.

Computing Systems provides commercial personal computers ("PCs"), home
PCs, workstations, UNIX(R)/(1l)/ servers, PC servers, storage and software
solutions. Commercial PCs include the Vectra desktop series, as well as
OmniBook and Pavilion notebook PCs. Home PCs include the Pavilion series
of multi-media consumer desktop PCs. Workstations provide UNIX(R), Windows
and Linux-based systems. The UNIX(R) server offering ranges from low-end
servers to high-end scalable systems such as the Superdome line, all of
which run on HP's PA-RISC architecture and HP-UX operating system. PC
servers offer primarily low-end and mid-range products that run on the
Windows and Linux operating systems. Storage provides mid-range and
high-end array offerings, storage area networks and storage area
management and virtualization software, as well as tape and optical
libraries, tape drive mechanisms and tape media. The software category
offers OpenView and other solutions designed to manage large-scale systems
and networks. In addition, software includes telecommunications
infrastructure solutions and middleware.

/(1)/ UNIX(R) is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

2

IT Services provides customer support, consulting, outsourcing, technology
financing and complementary third-party products delivered with the sales
of HP solutions. Customer support offers a range of high- value solutions
from mission-critical and networking services that span the entire IT
environment to low-cost, high-volume product support. Consulting provides
industry-specific business and IT consulting and system integration
services in areas such as financial services, telecommunications and
manufacturing, as well as cross-industry expertise in Customer
Relationship Management ("CRM"), e-commerce and IT infrastructure.
Outsourcing offers a range of IT management services, both comprehensive
and selective, including transformational infrastructure services, client
computing managed services, managed web services and application services
to medium and large companies. Technology financing capabilities include
leasing, solution financing and computing and printing utility offerings.
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A summary of HP's net revenue and earnings from operations as contributed by
our principal business segments is found in Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. A
discussion of factors potentially affecting our operations is set forth in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations——-Factors That Could Affect Future Results," in Item 7, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Strategy and Segment Overview

We provide a broad mix of products across a variety of product segments and
across customer categories ranging from large multinational enterprises to
individual consumers. We seek to be the category leader with respect to each of
the specific products and categories in which we compete and to expand actively
into new and adjacent markets. Accordingly, in fiscal 2001 we focused on
strengthening and enhancing each of our segments as described further below.

At the same time that we focus on individual offerings, we seek to utilize
the depth and breadth of our products and services, as well as our expertise in
working with complementary technology providers, in order to provide integrated
solutions that address new and emerging market demands and offer new customer
experiences. This solution-driven approach is focused on two converging paths.
The first path is the development of next-generation devices—--printers, PCs,
handhelds, notebooks and new devices that will take advantage of the
convergence of technology. In addition to their more traditional functions,
these devices feature embedded technology that allows them to work in
conjunction with other devices (whether wireless or wired) to provide or access
e-services. For example, the use of Personal Digital Assistants ("PDAs") to
access the Internet to complete transactions and print information requires
that separate devices work together. The second path is the development of a
dynamic, flexible, reliable infrastructure that can be accessed and utilized in
more ways by the variety of devices discussed above. We believe that as
infrastructure and access devices evolve and increase in their interdependence,
they will create a more dynamic, flexible and interconnected world.

Following are discussions of our principal business segments and key
activities in these segments during fiscal 2001:

Imaging and Printing Systems

HP's portfolio of printing and imaging offerings ranges from low-end
printers and supplies to commercial printing solutions. These offerings fall
into four product categories: printer hardware, imaging, printing supplies and
commercial printing. Generally, in fiscal 2001 the Imaging and Printing Systems
segment executed against a number of key goals, including increased focus on
gaining market share in low-end products, ensuring a smooth transition to new
products in our LaserJet and Inkjet printer families, and expanding our
commitment to commercial printing.

More detailed descriptions of our various product categories and their
focuses are set forth below:

Printer Hardware. Our printer hardware category consists of laser and
inkjet printing devices, which include color and monochrome printers for the
business and home, multi-function laser devices and wide- and large-format
inkjet printers. In fiscal 2001, we witnessed the successful introduction of a
completely new line of
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Internet-enabled LaserJet printers with improved speed and reduced price,
including the LaserJet 1200, 2200, 3200 and 4100 models. Other key developments
in the printer hardware category during fiscal 2001 included the following:

the introduction of the LaserJet 1000, our lowest-ever priced monochrome
laser printer;

the introduction of the color inkjet printer models cpll60 and cpl700,
which bring improved image quality and paper handling options to their
category;

an agreement with Research in Motion Limited ("RIM") to develop jointly
mobile printing applications for RIM's BlackBerry wireless e-mail solution
and HP printers;

the introduction of two new print servers, the HP Jetdirect 200m/250m and
the HP Wireless Print Server, which enable our customers to share printers
wirelessly or over a network;

the introduction of our DeskJet 995c printer, the industry's first
integrated Bluetooth inkjet printer, which allows mobile users to print
without cables from up to 10 meters away from other devices enabled for
Bluetooth printing;

the introduction of our Business Inkjet Printer 2600, a wide-format color
inkjet printer which, when configured with an HP Jetdirect print server,

becomes a high-performance Internet-enabled appliance that can be shared

in a network environment;

the introduction of three graphics printers with exceptional color
accuracy and remote proofing capabilities (HP DesignJdet 10ps, 20ps and
50ps); and

the introduction of the DesignJet 1050c and 1055cm large-format color
printers.

Imaging. Imaging includes all-in-one products, scanners, digital cameras,
PhotoSmart printers, personal color copiers, faxes and imaging services. This
category also includes management of our joint venture with Eastman Kodak
Company, called Phogenix Imaging LLC, which develops solutions for retail photo
processing that replace silver halide processing with inkjet-based solutions.
Key developments during fiscal 2001 included the following:

the introduction of the PSC 950 all-in-one products, which provide
breakthroughs in ease-of-use in photo printing;

the introduction of the Photo Scanner 1000, which scans photos with
photo-quality results;

the introduction of four new Scanjet models, the HP Scanjet 4400c, 4470c,
5470c and 5490c;

introduction of a suite of easy-to-use digital cameras (the HP PhotoSmart
318, 612 and 715 digital cameras); and

the expansion of our line of photo-quality color inkjet printers,
including an ultra-portable printer (the HP PhotoSmart 100, 115 and 1315
photo printers).

Printing Supplies. Our printing supplies category includes ink cartridges
for our Inkjet line of printers, toner for our LaserJet line of products and
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paper, both for general printing purposes and also specifically for photo
processing. In fiscal 2001 we continued our innovation of printing supplies,
including the introduction of new premium photo paper.

Commercial Printing. The use of digital presses in commercial printing is
an application to which we intend to bring both our printing expertise and our
expertise in enterprise computing in order to develop solutions that can store,
manage and deliver rich content. Key developments in this category included our
$100 million investment in Indigo N.V. ("Indigo") made in 2000 as part of a
broader commercial relationship with Indigo to develop jointly and resell
digital presses that utilize Indigo technology for the commercial printing
market. This relationship and our entry into the market were further advanced
by our agreement in September 2001 to acquire the remaining outstanding shares
of Indigo, which will allow HP to build on its initial work with Indigo and
advance further into the digital press market.

Computing Systems

Computing Systems is at the core of our infrastructure offering and includes
commercial PCs, home PCs, workstations, UNIX(R) servers, PC servers, storage
and software products. Computing Systems' products and services are used in a
variety of applications ranging from personal and small business information
management to large scale IT infrastructure solutions for global service
providers, telecommunications companies, financial institutions, Internet
services vendors, manufacturers, and retail and transportation companies.
Generally, our Computing Systems segment includes both personal systems,
focused on individual users, and enterprise systems, focused on building
corporate infrastructure.

Key developments over the past year are described below:

Desktop PCs. As the desktop market has matured, many of our efforts have
focused on improving the distribution balance between direct and retail sales
and also in improving the cost structure of our business in order to remain
competitive in this challenging market. At the same time, we have focused on
configuring desktops and pre-loading software to address a variety of customer
uses (such as downloading and playing music and burning CDs) and to take
advantage of the roll-out of Microsoft Corporation's new operating system,
Windows XP. Key products within this area include HP Pavilion multi-media
consumer PCs and the HP Vectra series of desktop PCs for use in enterprise and
small businesses.

Notebook PCs. We continued to focus on providing notebook PCs that maximize
the balance between size, weight and performance. Key products in this area
include HP OmniBook mobile PCs for use in business and Pavilion laptops for
consumers. This past year we successfully introduced a new business notebook
PC, the Omnibook 500, which is an extremely lightweight notebook that offers
great flexibility in use.

Servers and Workstations. Our server line includes products ranging from
high-volume industry standard servers to high-end systems like our Superdome
line. HP servers span operating systems from our UNIX(R) platform, HP-UX, to
Microsoft Windows and Linux. Our core computing technologies include our
Precision Architecture Reduced Instruction Set Computer ("PA-RISC")
architecture for UNIX(R) servers and workstations and our Explicitly Parallel
Instruction Computing ("EPIC") technology, which provides the foundation for
Intel's next-generation Itanium Processor Family ("IPF") architecture. Over the
past year, we introduced the rp8400, an extension of an existing mid-range
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server which leverages the high-end Superdome architecture. We also introduced
two new mid-range servers, the rx4610 and rx9610, which use the new Itanium
processor. In addition, we upgraded our low-end rp5400 server, our mid-range
rp7400 server and our high-end Superdome server to the PA-8700 processor, which
improved performance across these products. Workstations include UNIX (R),
Windows and Linux-based systems. As in our server category, we have also begun
our shift toward including the new Itanium processor in our workstation
products.

Storage. Our storage strategy has been focused on enhancing a wide range of
storage solutions from mid-range and high-end array offerings to storage area
networks and storage area management and virtualization software, as well as
establishing stronger positions in tape automation and tape drive markets. Over
the past year, we have taken several actions to increase our offerings in this
area. We acquired StorageApps Inc., a provider of virtualization software that
allows enterprises to support multi-vendor networks. The acquisition allows us
to focus increasingly on storage virtualization as a key technology,
recognizing that customers do not want to be locked into a proprietary storage
system. In addition, we solidified our product offerings by adding the VA7100
and VA7400 mid-range disc arrays to our product line. We also renewed our
partnership with Hitachi Data Systems for an additional three years, allowing
us to continue offering our leading high-end storage products. We also extended
our product offering of the Ultrium family of tape drives, marketed as
stand-alone tape drives and integrated into our tape automation libraries.
These drives are based on the Ultrium format of linear tape-open technology.

Software. Our enterprise software portfolio spans a wide set of software
categories, from server operating systems, to middleware, to network and
systems management software. We have focused on deploying these technologies to
create integrated software suites and solutions. Key products include HP-UX,
HP-Linux, HP Netaction and OpenView.

In operating systems, we continue to enhance our UNIX(R) operating system,
HP-UX; to develop leading Linux offerings; and to offer systems running
Microsoft products for both servers and PCs. By offering multiple platforms, we
allow customers to choose among a number of selections that will best integrate
with their current environment.

In middleware, we introduced HP Netaction, a product suite that provides a
comprehensive software foundation for the development, integration and
deployment of new revenue-generating voice and data services.

In the area of network and system management software, OpenView continues to
be a market leading product and we continue to enhance both its performance and
breadth by continually developing capabilities for addressing the emerging
requirements of managing dynamic services-based computing. We are expanding the
scope of enterprise management through our Integrated Services Management
Program, which seeks to manage the enterprise IT infrastructure from end to end.

IT Services

Our IT Services strategy reflects the inextricable link between business
transformation and IT implementation. To allow customers to take advantage of
emerging technologies and business models, we offer a complete lifecycle of
services—--planning, implementation, support and ongoing operations. IT Services
offers a wide variety of services aimed at providing customers with a highly
reliable IT infrastructure, including consulting and implementation services
for traditional and Internet-based IT infrastructures, storage and storage-—area
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networks, and IT management; next-generation networks and mobile
communications; proactive, mission-critical support services;
business—-continuity and recovery services; and infrastructure outsourcing and
Web-hosting services. Services aimed at helping customers rapidly implement key
business solutions are also provided, including supply-chain management,
e-procurement, business intelligence, CRM, enterprise application integration,
e-commerce, e-banking, trading communities, portals and virtual business
networks.

Our IT Services segment is organized around a number of different service
areas, as described below:

Customer Support. Our customer support category offers a range of
high-value solutions from mission-critical and networking services that span
the entire IT environment to low-cost, high-volume product support. Our support
services provide customers a variety of delivery methods, including web-based
self-service, telephone assistance, express replacement, on-site repair,
software support and updates, always available mission-critical support,
network support and business recovery services. Our key assets in this business
include our support delivery technology, which consists of remote and on-site
diagnostic tools and technologies, self-support portals and a world-class
delivery organization with over 600 support offices in 120 countries. In
addition, our range of services is a key asset.

Consulting. Consulting provides industry-specific business and IT
consulting and system integration services in areas such as financial services,
telecommunications and manufacturing, as well as cross-industry expertise in
CRM, e-commerce and IT infrastructure. Our key assets in this area include our
expertise in the IT infrastructure space and our expertise in certain
industry-specific markets and solution areas. In fiscal 2001, HP Consulting
formed an alliance with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to provide technology
consulting services to airlines.

Outsourcing. Outsourcing offers a range of IT management services, both
comprehensive and selective, including transformational infrastructure
services, client computing managed services, managed web services and
application services to medium and large companies. Many customers see
outsourcing as a way to reduce their IT costs and allow them to focus their
resources on their core business instead of investing in IT personnel and
equipment. Competitive advantages in the outsourcing business include our
ability to utilize our experience in IT infrastructure and mission-critical
data centers to provide, manage, operate and evolve our customers' IT
infrastructure. HP Outsourcing offers flexible choices to customers and uses a
combination of nine dedicated worldwide service centers and Internet data
centers in addition to enhanced integration through partnering. In fiscal 2001,
we entered into an agreement with Accenture LLP, whereby we will provide
outsourcing services for its clients.

Other. We also offer financing services for technology, complementary
third-party products delivered with sales of HP solutions and
e—education/training. Technology financing capabilities, which allow customers
to plan and manage the cost of solutions, include leasing, solution financing
and computing and printing utility offerings.

Other

Our other primary businesses currently include our embedded and personal
systems category, built around our Jornada handheld product line, CD writers
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and DVD+RW drives.
Sales and Marketing

We continue to manage our business and report our financial results based on
our three principal business segments described above. The marketing and
selling of our products and services, however, are organized separately into
three main customer-facing organizations: a Consumer Business Organization
("CBO"); a Business Customer Organization ("BCO"); and an HP Services
Organization ("HPS"). HPS was created in fiscal 2001 in order to improve our
marketing and selling efforts for services.

CBO contains all of our consumer-related marketing and selling activities
consolidated into a single functional unit, and BCO represents the
consolidation of all of HP's business and enterprise-related marketing and
selling activities into a single functional unit. By consolidating around
customer groups, we have improved our customer relationships by providing a
single main point of contact to the customer, eliminating redundant sales
efforts, better leveraging cross-selling opportunities with customers and
better coordinating feedback and knowledge-capture of customer requirements and
trends for our development of cross-product solutions. This feedback and
knowledge is continuously incorporated into planning decisions supported by our
product-generation organizations, such as Imaging and Printing Systems and
Computing Systems. This new marketing structure enables us to leverage our core
assets better to deliver world-class technology, services and solutions, and a
world-class customer experience.

Because of the distinct nature of selling services, HPS oversees the
marketing and selling activities of our IT Services segment. This organization
coordinates with BCO due to the existence of enterprise customers in the two
groups, providing us with both the flexibility of distinct sales and marketing
organizations to act independently and the benefits of coordination.

Consumer Business Organization. CBO is responsible for marketing and
supplying our consumer products around the world. CBO is organized by product
offerings, including home PCs (Pavilion desktop PC products), printer hardware
and supplies (DeskJet and All-in-One inkjet printers, ink cartridges and
media), imaging (ScanJet scanners, digital cameras), personal appliances
(Jornada PDAs, CD writers, DVD+RW drives). By integrating the marketing for all
consumer products into a single organization, we have reduced redundancies and
better leveraged opportunities for cross-category consumer product marketing.

We have adopted a blended channel strategy for consumer product distribution
in the United States that includes sales through approximately 20,000
third-party retail locations and direct sales through hpshopping.com, a
wholly-owned subsidiary that supports online sales.

Key product development initiatives in fiscal 2001 included an increased
focus on consumer-oriented industrial design, providing new and additional
consumer e-services—-—-either independently or in conjunction with third-party
partners—-—-and a strong cross-product category marketing focus on imaging.

Sales through CBO are derived through reseller channels, including
retailers, dealers and original equipment manufacturers, as well as through
direct sales and distribution to customers over the Internet.

Business Customer Organization. BCO is responsible for marketing and
delivering products and solutions to all of our business and enterprise
customers. BCO's customers include small and medium businesses as well as
global enterprises, including telecommunications service providers, Internet
service providers and academic,
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scientific and government institutions. BCO is charged with developing a
comprehensive understanding of HP's business customers' needs and translating
this understanding into delivering world-class products, solutions and customer
experience throughout the customer lifecycle. Accordingly, BCO markets
products, services and solutions that constitute either individual products and
services or unique combinations of offerings from Imaging and Printing Systems
(LaserJet printer hardware and supplies), Computing Systems (commercial desktop
PCs, notebook PCs, workstations, servers, storage, software) and IT Services
(financing) .

Sales through BCO result from the efforts of our business customer sales
force, which includes direct field sales representatives, indirect sales (i.e.,
commercial channels), HP consultants, pre-sales technical personnel and
administrative support staff. BCO's direct sales force is divided into
specialty product and service representatives (such as for servers, storage,
software and services), and teams assigned to corporate accounts representing
all of our product and service categories.

HP Services Organization. HPS is responsible for marketing and delivering
information technology services to all of our business and enterprise
customers. HPS is charged with developing a comprehensive understanding of the
customer needs for our support, consulting and outsourcing services and
translating this understanding into delivering world-class services. HPS also
is charged with understanding the customer-loyalty and cross-selling
opportunities so that we can better sell services to our BCO customers, as well
as better sell our BCO products and solutions to services customers, including
customers of our multi-vendor support services.

Over the past year, CBO, BCO and HPS shared in several key developments in
our sales and marketing efforts. Besides creating HPS, in fiscal 2001 we
completed the simplification of our product line structure, which reduced our
number of product categories from 83 to 17. This simplification is designed to
eliminate customer confusion and increase our focus on key product lines. We
also implemented a new channel engagement program in fiscal 2001 that we have
called Hard Deck. This program is designed to clarify the roles and
responsibilities for us and our channel partners in order to improve our
channel relationships and make our selling model more efficient.

International

We maintain operations in more than 120 countries worldwide and sell into
additional geographies through various representatives and distributors. We
believe this geographic diversity allows us to draw on business and technical
expertise from a worldwide workforce, provides stability to our operations and
revenue streams to offset geographic economic trends and offers us an
opportunity to exploit new markets for maturing products. In addition, we
believe that in the future technology companies will have to develop products
and sales models that are able to target developing countries. Moreover, we
believe that our broad geographic presence and our e-Inclusion program, which
is focused on developing products and business models that will bring
technology to developing countries, will give us a solid base to build upon for
future growth.

A summary of our net revenue, and net property, plant and equipment by
geographic area is set forth in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by reference. More than half
of our overall net revenue comes from outside of the United States. In the last
three fiscal years, more than three-fourths of this international revenue was

10
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derived from Europe and the Asia Pacific region. A majority of our net revenue
originating outside the United States was from customers other than foreign
governments.

For a discussion of risks attendant to HP's foreign operations, see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations——-Factors That Could Affect Future Results--Due to the international
nature of our business, political or economic changes could harm our future
revenues, costs and expenses and financial condition" and "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations——Adoption of the Euro" in Item 7, "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure about Market Risk" in Item 7A and Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Research and Development

The process of developing new high-technology products and solutions is
inherently complex and uncertain. It requires, among other things, innovation
and accurate anticipation of customers' changing needs and emerging
technological trends. Without the introduction of new products, services and
enhancements, our products and services are likely to become technologically
obsolete over time, in which case revenue would be materially and adversely
affected. New products and services, if and when introduced, may not achieve
market acceptance. After the products and services are developed, we must
quickly manufacture and deliver such products and services in sufficient
volumes at acceptable costs to meet demand.

Hewlett-Packard Laboratories, also known as HP Labs, together with the
various research and development groups within the three principal business
segments, are responsible for our total research and development efforts.

Expenditures for research and development in fiscal 2001, including HP Labs
and the three principal business segments, were $2.7 billion. These
expenditures were $2.6 billion in fiscal 2000 and $2.4 billion in fiscal 1999.
In fiscal 2001, total research and development expenditures were 5.9% of net
revenue, compared to 5.4% in fiscal 2000 and 5.8% in fiscal 1999.

We anticipate that we will continue to have significant research and
development expenditures in the future to provide a continuing flow of
innovative, high-quality products and services to maintain and enhance our
competitive position.

Patents

Our general policy has been to seek patent protection for those inventions
and improvements likely to be incorporated into our products and services or to
give us a competitive advantage. While we believe that our patents and
applications have value, in general no single patent is in itself essential to
us as a whole or any of our principal business segments. In addition, any of
our proprietary rights could be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or may
not provide significant competitive advantages.

Backlog
We believe that backlog is not a meaningful indicator of future business
prospects due to the large volume of products delivered from shelf inventories,

the shortening of product life cycles and the relative portion of net revenue
related to our service and support business. Therefore, we believe that backlog

11
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information is not material to an understanding of our business.
Competition

We encounter aggressive competition in all areas of our business activity.
Our competitors are numerous, ranging from some of the world's largest
corporations to many relatively small and highly specialized firms. We compete
primarily on the basis of technology, performance, price, quality, reliability,
brand, distribution and customer service and support. Our reputation, the ease
of use of our products, the ready availability of multiple software
applications, our Internet infrastructure offering, and our customer training,
services and support are also important competitive factors.

The markets for each of our three principal business segments are
characterized by vigorous competition among major corporations with
long-established positions and a large number of new and rapidly growing firms.
Product life cycles are short, and to remain competitive we must develop new
products and services, periodically enhance our existing products and services
and compete effectively on the basis of the factors listed above. In addition,
we compete with many of our current and potential partners. The successful
management of these competitive partner relationships will be critical to our
future success. Moreover, we anticipate that we will have to continue to adjust
prices on many of our products and services to stay competitive, and thus
effectively manage financial returns with correspondingly reduced gross margins.

On an overall basis we are among the largest U.S.-based companies offering
our range of general-purpose computers and personal-information, imaging and
printing products for industrial, scientific and business applications, and
information technology services. We are the leader or among the leaders in each
of our principal business segments.

The competitive environments in which each segment operates are described
below:

Imaging and Printing Systems. The markets for printer hardware and
associated supplies are highly competitive, especially with respect to pricing
and the introduction of new products and features. Our key competitors in this
segment include Xerox Corporation, Lexmark International Group Inc., Seiko
Epson Corporation, Sony Corporation of America ("Sony") and Canon USA, Inc. We
are the leading imaging and printing systems provider in the world for printer
hardware, printing supplies and scanning devices. We believe that our brand
recognition, quality reputation, breadth of product offering and large customer
base are important competitive advantages. We and our competitors continue to
develop and market new and innovative products at competitive prices and, at
any given time, may set new market standards for quality, speed and function.
In recent years, we and our principal competitors have regularly lowered prices
on printer hardware to reach new customers and add customer value. If these
pressures are not mitigated by cost and expense reductions, our ability to
maintain or build market share profitably could be adversely affected. In
addition, refill and remanufactured alternatives for our supplies are available
from independent suppliers and, although generally offering lower print
quality, may be offered at lower prices and put pressure on our supplies
business. Two important areas for our growth include new business opportunities
in digital cameras and photo printers within our imaging business and digital
presses 1n our digital publishing business. While we encounter competitors
whose current market share is greater than ours, such as Sony in cameras and
Heidelberger Druckmaschinen Aktiengesellschaft ("Heidelberg") in publishing, we
believe we will provide important new contributions in both the home and
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publishing environments by providing comprehensive solutions that include data
management, storage, integrated system capabilities, security, authentication
and ease-of-use.

Computing Systems. The areas in which the Computing Systems segment
operates are intensely competitive, characterized by rapid and ongoing
technological innovation and price reductions. Our competitors are some of the
largest, most successful companies in the world. They range from broad
solutions providers such as International Business Machines Corporation to more
focused competitors such as EMC Corporation in storage, Dell Computer
Corporation in personal computers and servers, and Sun Microsystems, Inc. in
servers. Compaqg Computer Corporation is also a competitor on both focused and
broad-based levels. Broad-based solutions providers benefit from their existing
customer base and the breadth of their product offerings, while more focused
competitors are able to concentrate their efforts on providing the most
competitive product and also may contribute to pricing pressures within a
product category, such as PCs. We believe that our important competitive
advantages in this segment include our broad range of server, storage and
software products and our significant intellectual property portfolio and
research and development capabilities, which will contribute to further
enhancements of our product offerings.

IT Services. The principal areas in which IT Services competes are customer
support, consulting, outsourcing and financing. The support and consulting
markets have been under significant pressure as customers scrutinize their IT
spending in response to the global economic downturn. However, the downturn
also has contributed to increased use of outsourcing services as customers
attempt to reduce their IT costs and focus their resources on their core
businesses. Our key competitors in this segment include the service
organizations of certain companies such as IBM Global Services and Compaqg
Global Services and independent service firms such as EDS Corporation and
Computer Sciences Corporation. We also compete with consulting firms such as
Accenture LLP, CapGemini/Ernst & Young and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Many of
these competitors are able to offer a wide range of services through a global
network of service providers, which may be larger than our own, and some of our
competitors enjoy significant brand recognition. We believe that our
competitive advantages in this segment include our world-class delivery
organization with over 600 offices in 120 countries for support and nine
dedicated worldwide service and Internet data centers for outsourcing. An
additional advantage in our support business is our delivery technology, which
consists of remote and on-site diagnostic
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tools and technologies, as well as self-support portals. Our competitive
advantage in consulting centers around our expertise in IT infrastructure and
in certain industry-specific markets and solution areas. The industry areas of
expertise are mainly financial services, telecommunications and manufacturing,
while the solution areas of expertise include CRM and e-commerce. In our
financing business, our competitors are captive financing companies, mainly IBM
Global Financing, banks and financial institutions. We believe our competitive
advantage in this business is our ability to finance products, services or
total solutions.

Materials

Our manufacturing operations employ a wide variety of semiconductors,
electromechanical components and assemblies, and raw materials such as plastic
resins and sheet metal. Although we believe that the materials and supplies
necessary for our manufacturing operations are presently available in the
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quantities required, we sometimes experience a short supply of certain
component parts as a result of strong demand in the industry for those parts.

We purchase materials, supplies and product subassemblies from a substantial
number of vendors. For many of our products, we have existing alternate sources
of supply, or such sources are readily available. However, we do rely on sole
sources for laser printer engines and parts for products with short life cycles
(although some of these sources have operations in multiple locations). We also
have a dependency upon Intel Corporation as a supplier of processors and static
RAM and Microsoft Corporation for various software products; however, we
believe that disruptions with these suppliers would result in industry-wide
dislocations and therefore would not disproportionately disadvantage HP
relative to competitors. In addition, we have engaged manufacturers in Taiwan
for the production of notebook computers. While these relationships and
dependencies have not resulted in material disruptions in the past, natural
disasters in Taiwan have caused temporary disruptions in communications and
supplies, which did not have a material impact on our results of operations.

Environment

Certain of our operations involve the use of substances regulated under
various federal, state and international laws governing the environment. It is
our policy to apply strict standards for environmental protection to sites
inside and outside the United States, even if not subject to regulations
imposed by local governments. The liability for environmental remediation and
related costs is accrued when it is considered probable and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Environmental costs are presently not material to our
operations or financial position.

Employees
HP had approximately 86,200 employees worldwide as of October 31, 2001.
Information regarding our executive officers is set forth in Part III.
ITEM 2. Properties.

The principal executive offices of HP are located at 3000 Hanover Street,
Palo Alto, California 94304, USA. As of October 31, 2001, we owned or leased a
total of approximately 43.9 million square feet of space worldwide, including
0.4 million square feet currently occupied by Agilent Technologies, Inc. We
believe that our existing properties are in good condition and suitable for the
conduct of our business.

Our plants are equipped with machinery, most of which is owned and is in
part developed by us to meet the special requirements for manufacturing
computers, peripherals and systems. At the end of fiscal 2001, we were
productively utilizing the vast majority of the space in our facilities, while
actively disposing of space determined to be excess.

We anticipate that most of the capital necessary for expansion will continue
to be obtained from internally generated funds. Investment in new property,
plant and equipment from continuing operations amounted to $1.5 billion in
fiscal 2001, $1.7 billion in fiscal 2000 and $1.1 billion in fiscal 1999.
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As of October 31, 2001, our sales and support operations occupied
approximately 15.9 million square feet, of which approximately 5.8 million
square feet were located within the United States. We own 34% of the space used
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for sales and support activities and lease the remaining 66%.

Our manufacturing plants, research and development facilities and warehouse
and administrative facilities occupied approximately 28.0 million square feet,
of which approximately 19.8 million square feet were located within the United
States. We own 67% of our manufacturing, research and development, warehouse
and administrative space and lease the remaining 33%. None of the property we
own is held subject to any major encumbrances.

As indicated above, we have three principal business segments: Imaging and
Printing Systems, Computing Systems and IT Services. Because of the
interrelation of these three segments, substantially all of the properties are
used at least in part by each of these segments, and we retain the flexibility
to use each of the properties in whole or in part for each of the segments.

The locations of HP's headquarters of geographic operations are as follows:

Headquarters of Geographic Operations

Europe, Africa, Middle
Latin America East Asia Pacific

Miami, Florida Geneva, Switzerland Hong Kong

The locations of HP's major product development and manufacturing facilities
and Hewlett-Packard Laboratories are as follows:

Product Development and Manufacturing

Hewlett-Packard

Americas Europe Laboratories
Cupertino, Costa Mesa, Grenoble and Isle Palo Alto, California
Mountain View, Palo D'Abeau, France
Alto, Roseville, Grenoble, France
San Diego, Santa Clara, Boeblingen, Germany
Santa Monica, Sunnyvale Bangalore, India

and Woodland, California Dublin, Ireland
Haifa, Israel
Fort Collins and Greeley, Amsterdam and Amersfoort,

Colorado The Netherlands Tokyo, Japan
Boise, Idaho Barcelona, Spain Bristol, United Kingdom
Mt. Laurel, New Jersey Bristol, United Kingdom
Corvallis, Oregon Asia Pacific
Memphis and Nashville, Melbourne, Australia
Tennessee

Shanghai, China
Austin, Texas

Bangalore, India
Chester, Richmond and

Sandston, Virginia Komiya, Japan
Vancouver, Washington Singapore
Aguadilla, Puerto Rico Taiwan

Sao Paulo, Brazil
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Guadalajara, Mexico
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.
Litigation Settlement
On June 4, 2001, HP and Pitney Bowes Inc. ("Pitney Bowes") announced that

they had entered into agreements which resolved all pending patent litigation
between the parties without admission of infringement and in connection
therewith HP paid Pitney Bowes $400 million in cash on June 7, 2001. In
addition, the companies entered into a technology licensing agreement and
expect to pursue business and commercial relationships. Pitney Bowes filed its
patent infringement case against HP on August 23, 1995 in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Connecticut, alleging that HP's LaserJet printers
infringed Pitney Bowes' character edge smoothing patent, and HP filed one case
against Pitney Bowes on August 23, 1995 in the U.S. District Court for the
District of Idaho to invalidate the Pitney Bowes patent and four cases on March
21, 2001 in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California
(San Francisco Division), on March 28, 2001 in the U.S. District Court for the
District of Idaho, on April 4, 2001 in the U.S. District Court for the Western
District of Texas and on May 11, 2001 in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California (San Jose Division), alleging that Pitney
Bowes' copiers, fax machines, document management software and a postal
metering machine infringed HP's patents. On May 29, 1996, HP answered the
complaint filed by Pitney Bowes and counterclaimed for a declaratory judgment
that the Pitney Bowes patent was invalid, unenforceable, and not infringed.
During the following 15 months, the parties engaged in extensive discovery. On
August 11, 1997, HP moved for summary judgment of non-infringement. On February
9, 1998, the Connecticut District Court denied HP's motion. On November 7,
1997, HP moved for summary judgment of invalidity of the Pitney Bowes patent,
and for summary judgment of noninfringement. On March 23, 1998, the Connecticut
District Court denied the motion for summary Jjudgment of invalidity, but
granted the motion for summary judgment of noninfringement, and entered
judgment in favor of HP. Pitney Bowes appealed that judgment, and on June 23,
1999 the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit reversed the judgment in
favor of HP and remanded the case to the trial court. On July 7, 1999, HP
petitioned the Patent and Trademark Office ("PTO") to reexamine the validity of
the Pitney Bowes patent. That petition was granted on August 27, 1999, and the
litigation in the Connecticut District Court was thereafter stayed pending
reexamination of the patent. On June 14, 2000, the PTO issued an Office Action
initially rejecting the claims of the Pitney Bowes patent asserted against HP
as invalid. On September 9, 2000, the PTO issued a Statement of Reasons for
Patentability affirming the claims of the Pitney Bowes patent. The stay on the
litigation was thereafter lifted, and on November 13, 2000, the Connecticut
District Court set a June 4, 2001 trial date for the case Pitney Bowes filed. A
"Markman" hearing was held on April 24, 2001 to determine the scope of the
Pitney Bowes patent claims which would affect the outcome of the litigation on
the issues of patent infringement as well as patent validity. The suits by HP
were pending. HP and Pitney Bowes had settlement discussions as the trial date
approached, resulting in the settlement agreement described above.

Pending or Threatened Litigation

On or about March 23, 1998, an individual filed a lawsuit against HP in
federal court in California claiming HP's LaserJet printers infringe his U.S.
patent 5,424,780, which he asserts covers portions of the resolution
enhancement technology employed in these printers. HP believes, based on an
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opinion from outside counsel, that it does not infringe the patent. HP has held
discussions with the plaintiff but has not resolved the matter. HP filed a
lawsuit to obtain a ruling that it does not infringe. Thereafter, the U.S.
Patent Office agreed to reexamine the patent based on prior art identified by
HP. The litigation is stayed pending the outcome of the Patent Office
reexamination.

On or about July 31, 2000, HP was sued in an unfair business practices
consumer class action filed by three residents of San Bernardino, California in
federal court in California. The three claim to have purchased different models
of HP inkjet printers over the past three years. This action alleges that HP
printers were sold with half-full or "economy" ink cartridges instead of full
cartridges and that HP's advertising, packaging and marketing representations
for the printers led the plaintiffs to believe they would receive full
cartridges. It is the basic contention of this action that HP's advertising and
failure to advise specifically that "economy" cartridges were included
constitute false and misleading conduct in violation of both the California
Consumer Legal Remedies
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Act and Section 17200 of the California Business and Professions Code. This
action seeks injunctive relief, disgorgement of profits, compensatory damages,
punitive damages and attorney fees. When HP failed to enter into an early
settlement of this action, consumer class actions were filed, in coordination
with the original plaintiffs, in over 30 states.

On or about April 10, 2001, a nationwide defective product consumer class
action was filed against HP in a Texas state district court by a resident of
eastern Texas. This action is one of five similar suits filed against several
computer manufacturers on the same day. The basic allegation in the action
against HP is that it knowingly sold computers containing floppy disk
controller chips that fail to detect both overruns and underruns if either
occurs on the last byte of a read/write operation. That failure is alleged to
result in data loss, data corruption or system failure. This suit seeks
injunctive relief, declaratory relief, rescission and attorney fees. After
filing this action the plaintiff's counsel initiated a related action with the
State of Illinois, the State of California and the United States of America.

On or about November 26, 2001, a securities class action was filed in
federal court in New York against various officers and directors of Agilent
Technologies, Inc. ("Agilent Technologies") and certain investment bank
underwriters concerning Agilent Technologies' initial public offering ("IPO")
in late 1999. The complaint alleges undisclosed and improper practices by the
underwriters concerning the allocation of Agilent Technologies IPO shares, in
violation of the federal securities laws, and seeks unspecified damages on
behalf of persons who purchased Agilent Technologies stock during the period
from November 17, 1999 through December 6, 2000. Other actions have been filed
making similar allegations regarding the IPOs of more than 300 other companies.
HP believes that Agilent Technologies has meritorious defenses to the claim and
will defend itself vigorously. While HP is not named as a defendant in this
action, HP has agreed to indemnify Agilent Technologies for a substantial
portion of IPO-related liabilities.

A putative class action lawsuit was filed in the Superior Court of the State
of California, County of Santa Clara on or about December 11, 2001, against
various officers and directors of HP alleging that the defendants breached
their fiduciary duties to HP shareowners by, among other things, failing to
conduct reasonable due diligence into the propriety of the merger transaction
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involving HP and Compag Computer Corporation and by filing with the Securities
and Exchange Commission a false and misleading Registration Statement on Form
S-4 and preliminary joint proxy statement/prospectus in connection with the
merger transaction. The case seeks declaratory, injunctive and other relief
permitted by law and equity. Defendants removed the case to the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California on or about December 19, 2001. HP
believes that the lawsuit is without merit and intends to defend the case
vigorously.

On or about December 27, 2001, Cornell University and the Cornell Research
Foundation, Inc. filed an action against HP in federal court in New York
alleging that HP's PA-RISC 8000 family of microprocessors infringes a Cornell
patent that describes a way of executing microprocessor instructions. This
action seeks declaratory, injunctive and other relief. After reviewing the
pertinent materials, HP believes that it does not infringe the patent.
Furthermore, HP believes Cornell's patent is invalid.

HP is involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings,
including those identified above, consisting of patent, commercial and
environmental matters, which arise in the ordinary course of business. Any
possible adverse outcome arising from these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse impact on the results of operations or financial position of
HP, either individually or in the aggregate. However, HP's evaluation of the
likely impact of these pending disputes could change in the future.

Environmental

HP is party to, or otherwise involved in, proceedings brought by federal or
state environmental agencies under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), known as "Superfund," or state laws
similar to CERCLA. HP is also conducting environmental investigations or
remediations at several of our current or former operating sites pursuant to
administrative orders or consent agreements with state environmental agencies.
Any liability from such proceedings, in the aggregate, is not expected to be
material to the operations or financial position of HP.
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In November 1999, in settlement of an administrative complaint filed in 1998
that alleged violations of the Toxic Substances Control Act ("TSCA"), HP
entered into a consent agreement with the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (the "Agency") under which HP agreed to pay a civil penalty
of $112,500, to have a ten-month post-enforcement audit of specified operations
conducted by a third party and to pay civil penalties in stipulated amounts for
any violations that may be discovered in that audit. As required by the terms
of the settlement agreement, the final report of the audit was submitted to the
Agency in April 2001. In May 2001, HP and Agilent Technologies, HP's former
subsidiary, paid stipulated penalties in the aggregate amount of $600,000 to
the Agency in full satisfaction of any claims under the agreement against
either company.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
Not applicable.
PART IT

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder
Matters.
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Information regarding the market prices of HP's common stock and the markets
for that stock may be found in the "Quarterly Summary" in Item 8 and the cover
page of this Form 10-K, which are incorporated herein by reference,
respectively. We have paid cash dividends each year since 1965. The current
rate is $0.08 per share per quarter. As of December 31, 2001, there were
approximately 121,000 shareowners of record. Additional information concerning
dividends may be found in the following sections of this Form 10-K, which are
incorporated herein by reference: "Selected Financial Data" in Item 6 and
"Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows," "Consolidated Statement of
Stockholders' Equity" and "Quarterly Summary" in Item 8.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.
HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Selected Financial Data/ (1) (2)/

For the years ended October 31

In millions, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
NEeL FOVENUE . ¢ ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt eeeeaeeeneean $45,226 $48,870 $42,371 $39,330 $35,358
Earnings from operations/ (3)/....eu e ieneennnn 1,439 4,025 3,818 3,456 3,476

Net earnings from continuing operations before

extraordinary item and cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle/(4) (5)/......... 624 3,561 3,104 2,678 2,515
Net earnings per share from continuing operations

before extraordinary item and cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle:/ (4) (5) (6)/

= 7= = X $ 0.32$ 1.80 $ 1.54 $ 1.29 ¢ 1.23

1 0 G oY o 0.32 1.73 1.49 1.26 1.19
Cash dividends declared per share/(6)/.....cuuu.. 0.32 0.32 0.32 0.30 0.26
At year-end:

Total assets/ (L) / u ettt e et e et e $32,584 $34,009 $35,297 $31,708 $29,852

Long-term debt .. ... ..ttt tnn e eeennnnn 3,729 3,402 1,764 2,063 3,158

(1) HP's consolidated financial statements and notes for all periods present
the businesses of Agilent Technologies, Inc. as a discontinued operation
through the spin-off date of June 2, 2000. Accordingly, total assets
includes net assets of discontinued operations of $3,533 million at October
31, 1999, $3,084 million at October 31, 1998 and $3,171 million at October
31, 1997. See further discussion in Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8.

(2) Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to
conform to the current year presentation.

(3) Earnings from operations includes restructuring charges of $384 million in
fiscal 2001, $102 million in fiscal 2000 and $122 million in fiscal 1998.

(4) Net earnings and net earnings per share from continuing operations before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
include the following items before related tax effects: $384 million of
restructuring charges, $471 million of impairment losses on investments, a
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$400 million charge for litigation settlement and a $131 million loss on
divestiture in fiscal 2001; $102 million of restructuring charges and $203
million of gains from divestitures in fiscal 2000; and $122 million of
restructuring charges in fiscal 1998.

(5) HP adopted Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statements" in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001,
retroactive to November 1, 2000. See further discussion in Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

(6) All per-share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one
stock split in the form of a stock dividend effective October 27, 2000.
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and the related notes that appear elsewhere in this
document.

Our consolidated financial statements for all periods present the businesses
of Agilent Technologies as a discontinued operation through the spin-off date
of June 2, 2000. Unless otherwise indicated, the following discussion relates
to HP's continuing operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

The following is a summary of operating results at the HP consolidated
level. This discussion is followed by a more detailed discussion of operating
results by segment. Product category fluctuations highlighted at the
consolidated level are more fully explained in the segment discussion.

Net Revenue

Net revenue declined 7% in fiscal 2001 to $45.2 billion, following growth of
15% in fiscal 2000. U.S. revenue in 2001 declined 13% to $18.8 billion, while
international revenue in 2001 decreased 3% overall to $26.4 billion. The global
economic downturn contributed significantly to the decline in both U.S. and
international revenue in 2001. In fiscal 2000, U.S. revenue increased 14% and
international revenue increased 16%, due largely to economic improvement in
Asia. On a foreign currency-adjusted basis, net revenue declined 3% year over
year for HP as a whole in fiscal 2001, while net revenue increased 17% on a
foreign currency-adjusted basis in fiscal 2000. The majority of the foreign
currency effect in both years was due to the weakening of the euro, partially
offset by the strengthening of the Japanese yen in 2000.

In fiscal 2001, net revenue for the Computing Systems business segment
decreased 14% and declined 5% for the Imaging and Printing Systems segment. Net
revenue for IT Services grew 6% in 2001. Of the overall 7% net revenue decline
for fiscal 2001, on a weighted basis printer hardware represented 4 percentage
points of the decline, while commercial PCs (desktop PCs and notebook PCs) and
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home PCs each accounted for approximately 1.5 percentage points of the decline.
A decrease in UNIX(R) and PC servers revenue also contributed slightly to the
year-over-year revenue decline. However, the decrease in server revenue was
offset, for the most part, by revenue growth in printer supplies. The declines
in the printer hardware and PC businesses were due primarily to decreases in
volume as a result of the economic slowdown in fiscal 2001. A shift in sales
mix into the sub-$150 printer market also contributed to the decrease in
printer hardware revenue. In addition, ongoing competitive pricing pressures
affected revenue performance in many of our product categories, particularly
for commercial and home PCs and printer hardware.

On a segment basis, net revenue for Computing Systems increased 19% in
fiscal 2000, while revenue for IT Services grew 13% and Imaging and Printing
Systems grew 10%. On a weighted basis, home PCs and printer supplies each
accounted for 4 percentage points of the overall 15% increase, while commercial
PCs represented 2 percentage points of growth. The remainder of the increase in
fiscal 2000 revenue consisted of growth across many product categories
including imaging, UNIX(R) and PC servers, customer support services,
outsourcing and our technology financing business. Growth in the PC business
was almost entirely attributable to strong unit sales, particularly in home and
notebook PCs, but this growth was moderated by a competitive pricing
environment. The unit growth in home and notebook PCs was driven by favorable
acceptance of new products, including our newly introduced retail notebook
line. Increased volume in our printer supplies business was fueled by continued
expansion of the printer hardware installed base.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

Gross margin, operating expenses and earnings as a percentage of net revenue
were as follows for the years ended October 31:

2001 2000 1999

[ T =T (1= ek i 5 o 26.0% 28.3% 29.5%
Research and development . ...t ittt ittt ettt teeeeeeeeeenaeaeens 5.9% 5.4% 5.8%
Selling, general and administrative..........c.iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. 16.1% 14.5% 14.7%
RestrUCtUring Charge s . @ v ittt ittt it e e et e e ettt eee et enaeaanns 0.8% 0.2% -
Earnings from OperationS . ...ttt ittt it ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeenaeaeens 3.2% 8.2% 9.0%
Earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item,

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and taxes...... 1.6% 9.5% 9.9%

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue was 26.0% in fiscal 2001,
compared to 28.3% in fiscal 2000 and 29.5% in fiscal 1999. The 2.3 percentage
point decrease in the gross margin ratio in fiscal 2001 resulted from declines
across all of HP's business segments, while the 1.2 percentage point decline in
fiscal 2000 was mainly attributable to a decrease in the Computing Systems
segment. Overall, in fiscal 2001, gross margins were negatively impacted by a
significant decline in sales volumes across many product categories resulting
from the global economic downturn and increased inventory-related charges in
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response to this downturn. The higher inventory-related charges, which
represented 0.4 percentage points of the gross margin decline, mainly impacted
our Inkjet, imaging and personal appliances businesses.

We perform a detailed assessment of inventory at each balance sheet date,
which includes a review of, among other factors, demand requirements, product
lifecycle and product development plans, and quality issues. Based on this
analysis, we record adjustments, when appropriate, to reflect inventory at net
realizable value.

Of the 2.3 percentage point decline in gross margin for fiscal 2001, on a
weighted basis printer hardware and imaging each accounted for one percentage
point of the decline. In addition, gross margins for UNIX(R) and PC servers and
technology financing decreased slightly in fiscal 2001. These declines were
partially offset by an increase of one percentage point for printer supplies on
a weighted basis. Printer hardware and imaging were unfavorably impacted by a
continuing shift to lower-priced products in response to customer demand, in
addition to the inventory writedowns discussed above. Of the 1.2 percentage
point decline in gross margin for fiscal 2000, home PCs and commercial PCs were
the main drivers, although supplies experienced a gross margin improvement.
Gross margins in our PC business were unfavorably impacted by higher memory
costs, as well as a mix shift to lower-margin products and ongoing competitive
pricing pressures.

Operating Expenses
Research and Development

Research and development expense as a percentage of net revenue was 5.9% in
fiscal 2001, compared to 5.4% in fiscal 2000 and 5.8% in fiscal 1999. Research
and development expense in dollars grew 1% in fiscal 2001 and 8% in fiscal
2000. After adjusting for $35 million of in-process research and development
write-offs related to acquisitions recorded in fiscal 2001, research and
development expense for 2001 was flat compared to fiscal 2000. Research and
development expense grew 10% in the Computing Systems segment reflecting
investments related to server, software and storage products. However, declines
in research and development spending of 8% in IT Services and 3% in Imaging and
Printing Systems fully offset this growth during the year as a result of
focused spending in key areas and expense reductions in less strategic
programs. In addition, company-wide actions taken by management throughout the
year to control expenses, including the restructuring
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

actions discussed below, moderated research and development expense growth in
fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2000, the growth in research and development expense was
due primarily to an increase in spending on the design and development of new
technologies in both the Computing Systems and Imaging and Printing Systems
segments.

Selling, General and Administrative
Selling, general and administrative expense as a percentage of net revenue

was 16.1% in fiscal 2001, compared to 14.5% in fiscal 2000 and 14.7% in fiscal
1999. Selling, general and administrative expense in dollars increased 3% in
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fiscal 2001 and 13% in fiscal 2000. The increase in selling, general and
administrative expense for fiscal 2001 resulted substantially from a $172
million increase in bad debt reserves and write-offs in our financing portfolio
due to weakened economic conditions.

We evaluate the collectibility of our trade and financing receivables based
on a combination of factors. When we become aware of a specific customer's
inability to meet its financial obligations to us, such as in the case of
bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customer's operating results or
financial position, we record a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the
related receivable to the amount we reasonably believe is collectible. We also
record reserves for bad debt for all other customers based on a variety of
factors including the length of time the receivables are past due and
historical experience. If circumstances related to specific customers change,
our estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further reduced.

Overall, company-wide actions taken by management throughout the year to
control expenses, including the restructuring actions discussed below,
moderated selling, general and administrative expense growth in fiscal 2001.
The growth in selling, general and administrative expense in fiscal 2000 was
attributable to increased selling costs to support planned business expansion
and increased marketing expenses from the introduction of new products and to
support our e-services strategy and corporate branding initiative.

Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2001, management approved restructuring actions to respond to the
global economic downturn and to improve our cost structure by streamlining
operations and prioritizing resources in strategic areas of our business. We
recorded a restructuring charge of $384 million to reflect these actions. This
charge consisted of severance and other employee benefits related to the
planned termination of approximately 7,500 employees worldwide, across many
regions, business functions, and job classes, as well as costs related to the
consolidation of excess facilities. Included as an offset to this charge was
$38 million of related net pension and post-retirement settlement and
curtailment gains. As of October 31, 2001, 5,700 employees were terminated and
we had paid out $238 million of the accrued costs. We also made additional
payments of $26 million in fiscal 2001 related to restructuring charges accrued
in fiscal 2000. We expect to pay out the remainder of the accrual in fiscal
2002. These workforce reduction programs are expected to result in an
annualized cost savings of approximately $500 million.

In fiscal 2000, management approved an enhanced early retirement ("EER")
program designed to balance the workforce based on our long-term business
strategy. We offered approximately 2,500 U.S. employees the opportunity to
retire early and receive an enhanced payout, and approximately 1,300 employees
accepted the offer. Accordingly, we recorded a restructuring charge of $71
million, consisting of $100 million of severance and other employee benefits
offset by $29 million of related pension and post-retirement settlement and
curtailment gains. In addition to the EER program, we incurred $31 million of
other restructuring charges during fiscal 2000 related to various site
shutdowns resulting from strategic management decisions. In fiscal 2000, we
made payments of $98 million related to the restructuring charges accrued
during the year, of which $95 million was paid through HP's pension plan based
on an amendment to the plan.
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Interest and Other, Net

Interest and other, net, decreased $185 million in fiscal 2001 and increased
$11 million in fiscal 2000. The decline in interest and other, net, for fiscal
2001 was primarily attributable to a decrease in interest income due to lower
interest rates on cash and investments and lower average cash and investment
balances in fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000. Most of the remainder of the
decline was due to an increase in interest expense as a result of higher
average debt balances, partially offset by lower interest rates. The increase
in fiscal 2000 was due mainly to an increase in interest income due to higher

average cash and investment balances during fiscal 2000 compared to fiscal 1999.

Net Investment (Losses) Gains

HP reported net investment losses of $455 million in fiscal 2001 compared to
net investment gains of $41 million in fiscal 2000 and net investment gains of
$31 million in fiscal 1999.

Our investment portfolio includes equity and debt investments in public and
privately-held emerging technology companies. Many of these emerging technology
companies are still in the start-up or development stage. Our investments in
these companies are inherently risky because the markets for the technologies
or products they have under development are typically in the early stages and
may never develop. We monitor our investment portfolio for impairment on a
periodic basis. In the event that the carrying value of an investment exceeds
its fair value and the decline in value 1is determined to be
other-than-temporary, an impairment charge is recorded and a new cost basis for
the investment is established. Fair values for investments in public companies
are determined using quoted market prices. Fair values for investments in
privately-held companies are estimated based upon one or more of the following:
pricing models using historical and forecasted financial information and
current market rates, liquidation values, the values of recent rounds of
financing, or quoted market prices of comparable public companies. In order to
determine whether a decline in value is other-than-temporary, HP evaluates,
among other factors: the duration and extent to which the fair value has been
less than carrying value; the financial condition of and business outlook for
the company, including key operational and cash flow metrics, current market
conditions and future trends in the company's industry, and the company's
relative competitive position within the industry; and our intent and ability
to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

Due to the economic downturn, the decline in value of certain investments in
emerging technology companies was determined to be other-than-temporary.
Accordingly, we recorded impairment losses of $471 million on our investments
in both public and private emerging technology companies in fiscal 2001. This
amount was offset by $16 million of realized gains on the sale of equity
securities. As of October 31, 2001, the carrying value of the portion of our
remaining investment portfolio related to emerging technology companies was
$243 million. Depending on market conditions, we may incur additional charges
on our investment portfolio in the future.

In fiscal 2000, HP recorded $41 million of net gains on investments,
representing gains on sales of equity investments of $104 million, partially
offset by impairment losses of $63 million. The net investment gains of $31
million in fiscal 1999 resulted from realized gains on the sale of equity
securities.
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Litigation Settlement

On June 4, 2001, HP and Pitney Bowes, Inc. ("Pitney Bowes") announced that
they had entered into agreements that resolved all pending patent litigation
between the parties without admission of infringement, and in connection
therewith HP paid Pitney Bowes $400 million in cash on June 7, 2001. For
further discussion regarding the litigation, see Note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8.
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(Losses) Gains on Divestitures

In fiscal 2001, the net loss from divestitures was $53 million, consisting
of a $131 million loss on the sale of our VeriFone, Inc. subsidiary, offset by
a gain of $78 million on the sale of HP's remaining interest in a joint venture
to the other joint owner. In fiscal 2000, the net gain from divestitures was
$203 million, consisting of the gains on the sale of non-strategic businesses,
as well as the gain from the sale of part of HP's interest in the same joint
venture to the other joint owner.

Earnings from Continuing Operations before Extraordinary Item, Cumulative
Effect of Change in Accounting Principle and Taxes

As reported, earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item,
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and taxes decreased 85% to
$702 million in 2001, compared to a 10% increase to $4.6 billion in fiscal
2000. As a percentage of net revenue, earnings from continuing operations
before extraordinary item, cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
and taxes was 1.6% in fiscal 2001, compared to 9.5% in fiscal 2000 and 9.9% in
fiscal 1999. The significant decline in 2001 was driven by the global economic
downturn, as well as $384 million of restructuring charges, $455 million of net
investment losses, a $400 million charge for litigation settlement and $53
million of net losses on divestitures.

Provision for Taxes

HP's effective tax rate from continuing operations was 11% in fiscal 2001,
23% in fiscal 2000 and 26% in fiscal 1999. The year-over-year decreases were
primarily the result of changes in the mix of our pre-tax earnings in various
tax jurisdictions throughout the world. The mix of the pre-tax earnings in
fiscal 2001 was significantly impacted by $384 million of restructuring
charges, $455 million of net investment losses, a $400 million charge for
litigation settlement and $53 million of net losses on divestitures, all on a
pre-tax basis, which were incurred primarily in higher-tax jurisdictions.

Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations

Net earnings from discontinued operations were $136 million for fiscal 2000.
In the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the cumulative net earnings of Agilent
Technologies since the July 31, 1999 measurement date began to exceed the total
estimated net costs to effect the spin-off. Of the $136 million, net earnings
of Agilent Technologies for the period from the July 31, 1999 measurement date
through the June 2, 2000 spin-off date totaled $287 million (net of related tax
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expense of $174 million), and the net costs to effect the spin-off were $151
million (net of related tax benefit of $23 million). Net earnings from
discontinued operations of $387 million for fiscal 1999 consisted only of the
net earnings of Agilent Technologies. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 for further discussion.

Extraordinary Item

In December 2000, the Board of Directors authorized a repurchase program for
HP's zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes. Under the repurchase program,
we may repurchase the notes from time to time at varying prices. In fiscal
2001, we repurchased $1.2 billion in face value of the notes with a book value
of $729 million, resulting in an extraordinary gain on the early extinguishment
of debt of $56 million (net of related taxes of $33 million).

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

HP adopted Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements" in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, retroactive to November 1,
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2000. Accordingly, we have restated our consolidated results of operations for
the first three quarters of fiscal 2001, including a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $272 million, which was recorded as a
reduction of net income as of the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal
2001. Had SAB 101 been effective for fiscal 2000 and 1999, the pro forma
results and earnings per share would not have been materially different from
the previously reported results.

Segment Information

The following is a discussion of operating results for each of HP's business
segments. A description of products and services as well as financial data for
each segment can be found in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8. The financial data for fiscal years 2000 and 1999 have been restated
to reflect changes in our organizational structure that occurred during fiscal
2001. These changes are more fully described in Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8. The reportable segments disclosed in this
document are based on our management organizational structure as of October 31,
2001. Future changes to this organizational structure may result in changes to
the reportable segments disclosed.

Imaging and Printing Systems

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions)

Nt FOVENUE . v v vttt ettt e ettt ettt ee e e eeeeeeeeenns $19,447 $20,468 $18,550
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Earnings from operations.........eeeiieeiennnnen. $ 1,987 $ 2,666 $ 2,364
Earnings from operations as a percentage of net
EVENUR s v v v v vt e e e e e oo eaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaanns 10.2% 13.0% 12.7%

Imaging and Printing Systems' net revenue declined 5% in fiscal 2001,
following growth of 10% in fiscal 2000. On a foreign currency-adjusted basis,
net revenue declined 2% in 2001 and increased 11% in 2000. Of the overall 5%
net revenue decrease for fiscal 2001, on a weighted basis Inkjet and LaserJet
printer hardware revenue represented 9 percentage points of the decline,
partially offset by 3 percentage points of growth in printer supplies and 1
percentage point of growth in imaging devices. Overall, slowing markets across
all product categories and geographic regions due to the economic downturn
negatively impacted revenue in 2001. Of the segment's overall 10% revenue
increase for fiscal 2000, on a weighted basis printer supplies contributed
8 percentage points and imaging devices accounted for 3 percentage points of
growth, partially offset by a decline in printer hardware sales of 2 percentage
points.

Half of the printer hardware net revenue decline in fiscal 2001 was
attributable to a decrease in average selling prices driven by a continuing
demand shift to lower-priced printer products, particularly into the sub-$150
printer hardware market, and a competitive pricing environment. The remainder
of the printer hardware revenue decline reflected a drop in units of
approximately 10% due mainly to softening in both the consumer and business
markets. Partially offsetting this decline in printer hardware revenue was
growth in printer supplies and imaging products. Half of the net revenue growth
for printer supplies reflected a rise in volumes due to continued expansion of
the printer hardware installed base, while the remaining growth resulted
primarily from higher average selling prices. Net revenue growth in imaging was
driven primarily by an increase in unit sales for the product category,
moderated by growing demand for lower-priced products and competitive pricing.
The revenue growth for both supplies and imaging devices in fiscal 2001 was
dampened by the economic downturn.

Net revenue growth for printer supplies in fiscal 2000 was attributable to
increased volumes due mainly to expansion of the printer hardware installed
base. Revenue growth in imaging devices was fueled by excellent unit growth
from newly introduced products within the category, partially offset by planned
pricing declines in all-in-
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one products and a shift in sales mix to lower-priced scanners. Softening
demand in the printer hardware market, as well as shifts to lower-priced
products in this category, moderated the segment's net revenue growth in 2000.

Earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue was 10.2% in fiscal
2001, compared to 13.0% in fiscal 2000 and 12.7% in fiscal 1999. A decline in
gross margin accounted for 2.5 points of the 2.8 percentage point decrease in
the earnings from operations ratio in 2001, while the remaining decline was due
to a slight increase in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue.
Within the 2.5 percentage point gross margin decline, gross margins for printer
hardware and imaging products collectively dropped 4.6 percentage points on a
weighted basis. The majority of this gross margin decrease resulted from the
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continued shift in sales mix to lower-priced products as noted above. Gross
margins in these categories were further impacted unfavorably by an increase in
inventory-related reserves and charges in our Inkjet and imaging businesses and
charges related to the cancellation of planned production line expansion in our
Inkjet business that occurred in response to weakened economic conditions.
These incremental reserves and charges totaled $214 million for fiscal 2001.
Partially offsetting the 4.6 point gross margin decline in printer hardware and
imaging, on a weighted basis were gross margin improvements of approximately
1.0 percentage point from lower component costs due to a weaker Japanese yen
and approximately 0.8 percentage points due to supplies, which typically have
gross margins that exceed the segment average, becoming a larger portion of the
segment's product mix. Although operating expenses decreased in total,
operating expense as a percentage of net revenue for the segment increased by
0.3 percentage points compared to the prior year as the decrease in revenues
exceeded the rate of decrease in operating expenses.

In fiscal 2000, the increase of 0.3 percentage points in the earnings from
operations ratio consisted of a 1.2 percentage point improvement in operating
expenses as a percentage of net revenue, partially offset by a 0.9 percentage
point decline in the overall segment gross margin. The decline in the operating
expense ratio reflected controlled expense management. The gross margin decline
was attributable to a shift toward lower-priced printers and imaging devices,
as well as higher component costs related to a stronger Japanese yen. These
factors, which unfavorably impacted gross margin by 2.7 percentage points on a
weighted basis, were offset in part by a 2.0 percentage point margin
improvement due to economies of scale from increased production levels of
printer supplies.

Computing Systems

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions)

Nt FOVENUE . v v vttt ettt ettt ettt et e eeeeeeeeenns $17,771 $20,653 $17,395
Earnings (loss) from operations..........eeeeee.. S (450) $ 1,007 $ 988
Earnings (loss) from operations as a percentage

Of Net FeVENUE. . i ittt ittt e e e e e e e e et et et eeaenn (2.5)% 4.9% 5.7%

o)

Computing Systems' net revenue declined 14% in fiscal 2001, following a 19%
increase in fiscal 2000. On a foreign currency-adjusted basis, net revenue
declined 10% in 2001 and increased 22% in 2000. Of the overall 14% revenue
decrease for fiscal 2001, on a weighted basis commercial desktop PC and home PC
revenues each represented 4 percentage points of the decline and UNIX(R) and PC
server revenues each accounted for 3 percentage points. In addition, a decline
in revenue from workstations was offset by growth in notebook PCs. Overall
segment net revenue in fiscal 2001 was unfavorably impacted by the economic
downturn resulting in slowing markets across all product categories and
geographic regions. Of the overall 19% net revenue growth for fiscal 2000, on a
weighted basis home PCs contributed 11 percentage points, notebook PCs
accounted for 6 percentage points and UNIX(R) server growth represented 3
percentage points. This growth was moderated slightly by a decrease in both
enterprise storage and commercial desktop PC revenue. In both fiscal 2001 and
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2000, net revenues in the PC business were impacted by declining average
selling prices as a result of decreasing component costs, which are generally
passed on to the customer, and competitive pricing pressures.

The decline in fiscal 2001 net revenue within the PC business resulted from
significant decreases in commercial desktop PCs and home PCs, offset in part by
growth in notebook PCs. The revenue decline in commercial desktop PCs almost
equally reflected a decrease in volumes and an ongoing decrease in average
selling prices. Commercial desktop PC unit sales declined approximately 11% in
2001, while average selling prices declined approximately 10%. A decrease in
volumes of approximately 14% accounted for most of the home PC revenue decline,
while an approximate 4% decline in average selling prices also contributed to
the decrease in this product category. The decline in unit sales in both
commercial desktop PCs and home PCs reflected the effects of the economic
slowdown in fiscal 2001. In addition, a continued shift toward mobile computing
dampened growth in commercial desktop PCs, and home PC revenue was unfavorably
impacted by market saturation that began late in fiscal 2000. Notebook PC
revenue increased mainly as a result of higher unit sales largely as a result
of the previously noted shift toward mobile computing; however, this growth was
moderated by an ongoing decline in average selling prices. More than
three-fourths of the decrease in UNIX(R) server net revenue was due primarily
to weakness in mid-range servers, which were unfavorably impacted by the
enterprise market slowdown and competitive pricing pressures. The UNIX(R)
server revenue decline also resulted from a decrease in high-end server
revenue. Despite increasing sales of our new Superdome server in the last half
of fiscal 2001, high-end server net revenue was down for the fiscal year due to
the slowdown in enterprise capital spending and because Superdome did not begin
shipping in volume until January 2001. The decline in high-end server revenue
in fiscal 2001 was entirely offset by growth in the low-end category. The PC
server net revenue decline was driven by a sales mix shift to low-end products,
ongoing competitive pricing pressures and delayed product launches in 2001.
Revenue from workstations decreased as a result of the decline in IT spending
and overall weakness in the UNIX(R) sector.

In fiscal 2000, home PC net revenue growth reflected very strong unit sales,
moderated by lower average selling prices. Home PC volumes increased
approximately 97%, while average selling prices declined approximately 11% in
2000. Unit growth in home PCs was driven by favorable acceptance of new
products and was aided by the exit of two major competitors from the retail
market. Revenue growth in notebook PCs was due to an increase in volumes,
slightly offset by a decrease in average selling prices. Notebook PC unit sales
increased approximately 199%, while average selling prices decreased
approximately 18%. Notebook PC volumes in 2000 benefited from the introduction
of our retail notebook line as well as continued strong sales of the commercial
portfolio. Growth in low-end and mid-range UNIX(R) servers was driven by
increased unit sales and higher average selling prices that resulted from
enhanced product offerings. High-end UNIX(R) servers, however, exhibited some
weakness in 2000, primarily attributable to customer anticipation of our new
Superdome server introduced in the fourth quarter of 2000. Net revenue growth
for the segment in fiscal 2000 was unfavorably impacted by product transitions
resulting from our switch to a new enterprise storage partner. Revenue
performance in commercial desktop PCs declined due to lower average selling
prices, partially offset by an increase in unit sales.

Earnings (loss) from operations as a percentage of net revenue was (2.5)% in
fiscal 2001 compared to 4.9% in fiscal 2000 and 5.7% in fiscal 1999. An
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increase in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue accounted for 5.3
of the 7.4 percentage point decrease in the earnings from operations ratio in
2001, while the remaining 2.1 percentage points were due to a decline in gross
margin. The increase in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue was
mainly attributable to lower revenue coupled with a slight increase in
operating expenses. The slight increase in operating expenses reflected
significant hiring in the sales organizations over the past year in
anticipation of growth in key areas, particularly UNIX(R) servers, software and
storage, which did not materialize due to weakened economic conditions. In
addition, the segment invested in research and development
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activities for server, software and storage products. Half of the gross margin
decline was caused by a decline in PC server gross margin, which resulted from
lower average selling prices due to a shift toward lower-margin products and
competitive pricing pressures. The remainder of the gross margin decline for
the segment reflected the effect of the overall market slowdown on commercial
desktop PCs and home PCs.

The decrease in the earnings from operations ratio in fiscal 2000 of 0.8
percentage points was attributable to a 2.6 percentage point decline in gross
margin, partially offset by a 1.8 percentage point improvement in operating
expenses as a percentage of net revenue. The decline in gross margin was driven
by a mix shift within the segment toward home PCs and notebook PCs, which are
lower-margin products. In addition, gross margin was unfavorably impacted by
higher memory costs and declining average selling prices across the PC
business. These margin declines were partially offset by a shift to
higher-margin UNIX(R) server and enterprise storage products. The improvement
in operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue was due to improved
operational efficiencies.

IT Services

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions)

LY S o SN 72 S o NG $7,599 $7,150 $6,304
Earnings from operationsS. ... oottt eeeeeneeeeeennnnns S 342 s 474 $ 494
Earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue.... 4.5% 6.6% 7.8%

IT Services' net revenue increased 6% in fiscal 2001, following a 13%
increase in fiscal 2000. On a foreign currency-adjusted basis, net revenue
increased 11% in 2001 and 17% in 2000. Continued growth in customer support and
consulting drove the increase in revenue in fiscal 2001, with each category
accounting for 3 percentage points of the segment's 6% revenue growth on a
weighted basis. Fiscal 2001 net revenue was also favorably impacted by solid
sales in technology financing and outsourcing which was offset by a revenue
decline in complementary third-party products delivered with the sales of HP
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solutions. Overall, customer support, consulting and technology financing net
revenue growth in fiscal 2001 was moderated by the global economic downturn,
while our outsourcing business benefited from the slowdown as companies reduced
costs by outsourcing their IT functions. The segment's overall 13% net revenue
growth for fiscal 2000 was driven by customer support which contributed 4
percentage points on a weighted basis. Consulting and technology financing each
represented approximately 3 percentage points of the total growth, while
strength in our complementary products and outsourcing businesses accounted for
the remainder of the revenue growth for fiscal 2000.

Customer support net revenue grew 6% in fiscal 2001, two-thirds of which was
attributable to sales of mission-critical and networking services, while the
remaining increase was due to strength in various other support services.
Growth in consulting revenue of 21% was fueled by our ability to pursue an
increased number of, as well as larger, engagements as a result of the
investment in headcount in fiscal 2000. Consulting net revenue reflected strong
demand from the financial services and telecommunications industries, each of
which contributed approximately one-fourth to the increase in consulting
revenue in 2001. The remaining growth in consulting was attributable to an
increase in engagements for manufacturing businesses, as well as growth in
other types of consulting services. Revenue from our technology financing
business was favorably impacted in fiscal 2001 by a mix shift in the portfolio
toward operating leases. Net revenue growth in outsourcing was attributable to
larger comprehensive deals and increased business as companies reduced costs by
outsourcing their IT functions. Moderating the segment's overall revenue growth
in fiscal 2001 was a decline in the sale of complementary third-party products
due to a refocusing of this business and softened demand for networking
products during the fiscal year.
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In fiscal 2000, customer support net revenue growth was 8%. Half of this
growth was attributable to mission-critical and networking services, while
another one-third was due to storage services and support. Growth in consulting
resulted from strong demand from the financial services, manufacturing and
telecommunications industries. Net revenue from the financial services industry
contributed one-third of consulting revenue growth in 2000, while sales to
manufacturing businesses and the telecommunications industry each accounted for
one-fifth of the growth. Technology financing revenue benefited in fiscal 2000
from an increase in customer financing arrangements driven by strong
performance in UNIX(R) product sales.

Earnings from operations as a percentage of net revenue was 4.5% in fiscal
2001 compared to 6.6% in fiscal 2000 and 7.8% in fiscal 1999. Growth in
operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue and a decline in gross margin
in fiscal 2001 each represented half of the 2.1 percentage point decrease in
the earnings from operations ratio for the segment. The growth in the operating
expense ratio was due substantially to a $172 million increase in bad debt
reserves and write-offs in our financing portfolio in response to weakened
economic conditions. The one percentage point gross margin decline for IT
Services was driven primarily by a decrease in gross margin related to our
financing and customer support businesses, moderated by a gross margin
improvement in outsourcing and consulting. The gross margin decline in our
financing business was due to the mix shift toward operating leases, which have
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lower margins. Customer support gross margin was negatively impacted by
increased costs for support parts due to unfavorable currency effects and a mix
shift toward lower-margin services. The increase in gross margin for
outsourcing reflected increased process standardization and delivery
efficiency, while gross margin improvement in consulting resulted from improved
labor utilization and overall engagement cost management.

The 1.2 percentage point decrease in the earnings from operations ratio in
fiscal 2000 was attributable to a 1.6 percentage point increase in operating
expenses as a percentage of revenue, partially offset by a 0.4 percentage point
improvement in gross margin. The increase in the operating expense ratio was
due primarily to an increase in bad debt write-offs in our financing portfolio
and higher marketing expense to support HP's corporate branding initiative.
Half of the segment's 0.4 percentage point gross margin improvement was driven
by the optimization of existing data centers in outsourcing. In addition,
consulting gross margin was positively impacted in 2000 by improved engagement
cost management. These margin increases were partially offset by lower margins
in our complementary products business and an increase in hiring in our support
business in anticipation of future growth.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financial position remained strong throughout fiscal 2001 despite the
economic downturn, with cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of
$4.3 billion at October 31, 2001 compared to $4.0 billion at October 31, 2000.
During fiscal 2001, cash flows from operating activities and short-term and
long-term borrowings were used mainly to fund purchases of property, plant and
equipment, repurchases of our common stock, repurchases of our zero-coupon
subordinated convertible notes and payments of dividends.

Cash flows from operating activities were $2.6 billion during fiscal 2001
compared to $3.7 billion for fiscal 2000 and $3.1 billion for fiscal 1999. The
decrease in cash flows from operating activities in 2001 resulted primarily
from a decline in net earnings and timing of payments on accounts payable,
partially offset by a decline in receivables and a decrease in inventory. The
increase in cash flows from operating activities in 2000 was due mainly to the
timing of payments on taxes and accounts payable, partially offset by increases
in inventory and other assets.

Trade and current financing receivables as a percentage of net revenue were
14.8%, down from 17.5% as of October 31, 2000. The year-over-year improvement
in the ratio is due primarily to a reduction in the number of
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days of sales outstanding in accounts receivable as a result of increased
effectiveness in collection efforts. Inventory as a percentage of net revenue
was 11.5% at October 31, 2001, compared to 11.7% as of October 31, 2000. The
slight decrease in the ratio year over year is mainly attributable to active
inventory management.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2001 were $1.5 billion, compared to $1.7
billion for fiscal 2000 and $1.1 billion for fiscal 1999. Net property, plant
and equipment as a percentage of net revenue was 9.7% as of October 31, 2001,
compared to 9.2% as of October 31, 2000. The increase in this ratio is due
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mainly to a decrease in net revenue.

We invest excess cash in short- and long-term investments, depending on our
projected cash needs for operations, capital expenditures and other business
purposes. We also supplement our internally generated cash flow with a
combination of short- and long-term borrowings. Short- and long-term net
borrowings in fiscal 2001 generated cash of $277 million, as short-term and
long-term debt issuances, including the issuance of $636 million (based on the
foreign exchange rate at the date of issuance) of Euro Medium-Term Notes in
July 2001, were partially offset by repurchases of our zero-coupon subordinated
convertible notes and payments on other long-term debt. Long-term debt totaling
$290 million matured as scheduled in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2000, short- and
long-term net borrowings generated cash of $165 million due to the issuance of
$1.5 billion of Global Notes in June 2000, substantially offset by payments on
our short- and long-term debt. Long-term debt totaling $474 million matured as
scheduled in fiscal 2000. At October 31, 2001, we had an unused committed
borrowing facility in place totaling $1.0 billion.

In December 2000, the Board of Directors authorized a repurchase program for
HP's zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes. Under the repurchase program,
we may repurchase the notes from time to time at varying prices. In fiscal
2001, we repurchased notes with a book value of $729 million for an aggregate
price of $640 million, resulting in an extraordinary gain on the early
extinguishment of debt of $56 million (net of related taxes of $33 million).
Between November 1, 2001 and January 15, 2002, we repurchased additional
zero—coupon subordinated convertible notes with a book value of $42 million for
an aggregate price of $33 million, resulting in an extraordinary gain on the
early extinguishment of debt of $6 million (net of related taxes of $3 million).

In February 2000, we filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC to
register $3.0 billion of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock,
depositary shares and warrants. The registration statement was declared
effective in March 2000. In June 2000, HP offered under this shelf registration
statement $1.5 billion of unsecured 7.15% Global Notes, which mature on June
15, 2005 unless previously redeemed. In May 2001, we filed a prospectus
supplement to the registration statement, which allowed us to offer from time
to time up to $1.5 billion of Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due nine months or
more from the date of issue, in addition to the other types of securities
described above. During fiscal 2001, we issued an aggregate of $210 million of
Medium-Term Notes with a weighted average interest rate of 3.67% maturing in
2003 and 2004 under the registration statement. As of October 31, 2001, we had
remaining capacity to issue approximately $1.3 billion of securities under the
shelf registration statement.

In December 2001, we offered under the March 2000 shelf registration
statement $1.0 billion of unsecured 5.75% Global Notes, which mature on
December 15, 2006 unless previously redeemed. The net proceeds from the sale of
the notes were or will be used for general corporate purposes, which included
repayment of existing indebtedness, capital expenditures and working capital
needs. As of January 15, 2002, we had remaining capacity to issue $290 million
of securities under the shelf registration statement.

HP and Hewlett-Packard Finance Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HP
("HPFC"), have the ability to offer from time to time up to $3.0 billion of
Medium-Term Notes under a Euro Medium-Term Note Programme filed with the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. These notes can be denominated in any currency
including the euro.
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However, these notes have not been and will not be registered in the United
States. In July 2001, 750 million euro (or 636 million U.S. dollars, based on
the exchange rate on the date of issuance) of 5.25% Medium-Term Notes maturing
on July 5, 2006 were issued under this program. As of October 31, 2001, HP and
HPFC had remaining capacity to issue approximately $2.3 billion of Medium-Term
Notes under the program.

We repurchase shares of our common stock under a systematic program to
manage the dilution created by shares issued under employee stock plans and a
separate incremental plan. These plans authorize purchases in the open market
or in private transactions. In fiscal 2001, 45,036,000 shares were repurchased
for an aggregate price of $1.2 billion. As of October 31, 2001, we had
authorization for remaining future repurchases under the two programs of $1.6
billion. In fiscal 2000, 96,978,000 shares were repurchased for $5.6 billion
and 62,084,000 shares were repurchased for $2.6 billion in fiscal 1999.

On June 4, 2001, HP and Pitney Bowes announced that they had entered into
agreements that resolved all pending patent litigation between the parties
without admission of infringement and in connection therewith HP paid Pitney
Bowes $400 million in cash on June 7, 2001. This payment did not have a
material impact on HP's liquidity. For further discussion regarding the
litigation see Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

Completed Acquisitions and Divestitures

In fiscal 2001, we acquired Bluestone Software, Inc. for consideration of
$531 million and StorageApps Inc. for consideration of $319 million. In each
case the consideration consisted of HP common stock issued and options assumed,
as well as direct transaction costs. Each of these transactions was accounted
for under the purchase method, and accordingly the results of operations of the
acquired companies are included in our consolidated results of operations from
the date of acquisition. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 for additional information about these acquisitions.

In fiscal 2001, the net proceeds from divestitures was $117 million
resulting from the sale of our VeriFone, Inc. subsidiary and the sale of HP's
remaining interest in a joint venture to the other joint owner. In fiscal 2000,
the net proceeds from divestitures was $448 million resulting from the sale of
non-strategic businesses, as well as the sale of part of HP's interest in the
same Jjoint venture to the other joint owner.

Pending Acquisitions

In September 2001, we signed a definitive agreement with Compag Computer
Corporation ("Compaqg") to acquire all of the outstanding stock of Compaqg in
exchange for 0.6325 shares of HP common stock for each outstanding share of
Compaq stock and the assumption of options based on the same exchange ratio.
The estimated purchase price is $24 billion, which includes the estimated fair
value of HP common stock issued and options assumed, as well as estimated
direct transaction costs. This estimate was derived using an average market
price per share of HP common stock of $20.92, which was based on an average of
the closing prices for a range of trading days (August 30, August 31, September
4 and September 5, 2001) around the announcement date (September 3, 2001) of
the proposed merger. The final purchase price will be determined based upon the
number of Compaqg shares and options outstanding at the closing date. Compaq is
a leading global provider of enterprise technology and solutions. Completion of
the Compag merger is subject to customary closing conditions that include,
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among others, receipt of required approvals from our shareowners and from
Compaq shareowners, and receipt of required regulatory approvals. The
transaction, while expected to close in the first half of calendar year 2002,
may not be completed if any of the conditions is not satisfied. Under certain
terms specified in the merger agreement, HP or Compaqg may terminate the
agreement, and as a result, either HP or Compag may be required to pay a $675
million termination fee to the other party in certain circumstances. Unless
otherwise indicated, the
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discussions in this document relate to HP as a stand-alone entity and do not
reflect the impact of the pending business combination transaction with Compagq.

In September 2001, we signed a definitive agreement with Indigo N.V.
("Indigo") to commence an exchange offer to acquire all of the outstanding
shares of Indigo not already owned by HP (the "Shares") in exchange for a
combination of shares of HP's common stock and non-transferable contingent
value rights ("CVR") entitling the holder to a one-time contingent cash payment
of up to $4.50 per CVR, based on the achievement by the Indigo business of a
cumulative revenue milestone over a three-year post-closing period. Based on
the terms of the agreement, current assumptions on the quantity of each
consideration alternative, and HP's average closing share price for the 20-day
period ended December 31, 2001, the estimated consideration to acquire the
Shares is approximately $720 million plus approximately 56 million CVRs. The
$720 million consideration amount includes the estimated fair value of HP
common stock issued and options and warrants assumed, as well as estimated
direct transaction costs. The future cash pay-out, if any, of the CVRs will be
determined and payable after a three-year period commencing shortly after the
closing of the exchange offer. Indigo is a leading provider of high performance
digital color printing. The completion of this transaction is subject to the
tender for exchange of that number of Indigo shares which, when added to Indigo
shares currently owned by HP, will constitute at least 95% of Indigo's
outstanding shares, the receipt of required regulatory approvals and customary
closing conditions. The transaction, while expected to close in the first half
of calendar year 2002, may not be completed if any of the conditions is not
satisfied.

FACTORS THAT COULD AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

The competitive pressures we face could harm our revenues, gross margins and
prospects.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerous and varied competitors in
all areas of our business, and compete primarily on the basis of technology,
performance, price, quality, reliability, brand, distribution, customer service
and support. If we fail to develop new products, services and support,
periodically enhance our existing products, services and support, or otherwise
compete successfully, it could harm our operations and prospects. Further, we
may have to continue to lower the prices of many of our products, services and
support to stay competitive, while at the same time trying to maintain or
improve gross margins. If we cannot proportionately decrease our cost structure
in response to competitive price pressures, our gross margins and therefore our
profitability could be adversely affected.
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If we cannot continue to develop, manufacture and market innovative products
and services rapidly that meet customer requirements for performance and
reliability, we may lose market share and our revenues may suffer.

The process of developing new high technology products and services is
complex and uncertain, and failure to anticipate customers' changing needs and
emerging technological trends accurately and to develop or obtain appropriate
intellectual property could significantly harm our results of operations. We
must make long-term investments and commit significant resources before knowing
whether our predictions will eventually result in products that the market will
accept. After a product is developed, we must be able to manufacture sufficient
volumes quickly and at low costs. To accomplish this, we must accurately
forecast volumes, mix of products and configurations that meet customer
requirements, and we may not succeed.

If we do not effectively manage the transition from existing products to new
products, our revenues may suffer.

If we do not make an effective transition from existing products to new
products, our revenues may be seriously harmed. Among the factors that make a
smooth transition from current products to new products difficult are delays in
product development or manufacturing, variations in product costs, delays in
customer
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purchases of existing products in anticipation of new product introductions and
customer demand for the new product. Our revenues and gross margins also may
suffer due to the timing of product or service introductions by our suppliers
and competitors. This is especially challenging when a product has a short life
cycle or a competitor introduces a new product just before our own product
introduction. Furthermore, sales of our new products may replace sales of some
of our current products, offsetting the benefit of even a successful product
introduction. There may also be overlaps in the current products of HP and
product portfolios acquired through mergers and acquisitions that must be
managed. Given the competitive nature of our industry, if we incur delays in
new product introductions or do not accurately estimate the market effects of
new product introductions, future demand for our products and our revenues may
be seriously harmed.

Our revenues and selling, general and administrative expenses will suffer if we
cannot continue to license or enforce the intellectual property rights on which
our business depends or if third parties assert that we violate their
intellectual property rights.

We generally rely upon patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws in
the United States and similar laws in other countries, and agreements with our
employees, customers, partners and other parties, to establish and maintain our
intellectual property rights in technology and products used in our operations.
However, any of our intellectual property rights could be challenged,
invalidated or circumvented, or our intellectual property rights may not
provide competitive advantages, which could significantly harm our business.
Also, because of the rapid pace of technological change in the information
technology industry, much of our business and many of our products rely on key
technologies developed by third parties, and we may not be able to obtain or to
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continue to obtain licenses and technologies from these third parties at all or
on reasonable terms. Third parties also may claim that we are infringing upon
their intellectual property rights. Even if we do not believe that our products
or business are infringing upon third parties' intellectual property rights,
the claims can be time-consuming and costly to defend and divert management's
attention and resources away from our business. Claims of intellectual property
infringement also might require us to enter into costly settlement or license
agreements. If we cannot or do not license the infringed technology at all or
on reasonable terms or substitute similar technology from another source, our
operations could suffer. In addition, it is possible that as a consequence of
mergers and acquisitions some of our intellectual property rights may be
licensed to a third party that had not been licensed prior to the transaction
or that certain restrictions could be imposed on our business that had not been
imposed prior to the transaction. Consequently, we may lose a competitive
advantage with respect to these intellectual property rights or we may be
required to enter into costly arrangements in order to terminate or limit these
agreements.

If we fail to manage distribution of our products and services properly, or if
our distributors' financial condition or operations weaken, our revenues and
gross margins could be adversely affected.

We use a variety of different distribution methods to sell our products and
services, including third-party resellers and distributors and both retail and
direct sales to both enterprise accounts and consumers. Since each distribution
method has distinct risks and gross margins, the failure to implement the most
advantageous balance in the delivery model for our products and services could
adversely affect our gross margins and therefore profitability. For example:

As we continue to increase our commitment to direct sales, we could risk
alienating channel partners and adversely affecting our distribution
model.

Since direct sales may compete with the sales made by third-party
resellers and distributors, these third-party resellers and distributors
may elect to use other suppliers that do not directly sell their own
products.
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Because not all of our customers will prefer to or seek to purchase
directly, any increase in our commitment to direct sales in order to
increase our gross margins could alienate some of our channel partners. As
a result, we may lose some of our customers who purchase from third-party
resellers or distributors.

Some of our wholesale and retail distributors may be unable to withstand
changes in business conditions.

Some of our wholesale and retail distributors may have insufficient
financial resources and may not be able to withstand changes in business
conditions, including the recent economic downturn. Revenues from indirect
sales could suffer if our distributors' financial condition or operations
weaken.
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Our inventory management will be complex as we will continue to sell a
significant mix of products through distributors.

We must manage inventory effectively, particularly with respect to sales
to distributors. Distributors may increase orders during periods of
product shortages, cancel orders if their inventory is too high, or delay
orders in anticipation of new products. Distributors also may adjust their
orders in response to the supply of our products and the products of our
competitors that are available to the distributor and seasonal
fluctuations in end-user demand. If we have excess inventory, we may have
to reduce our prices and write down inventory, which in turn could result
in lower gross margins.

We depend on third party suppliers and our revenues and gross margins could be
adversely affected if we fail to receive timely delivery of quality components
or if we fail to manage inventory levels properly.

Our manufacturing operations depend on our ability to anticipate our needs
for components and products and our suppliers' ability to deliver quality
components and products in time to meet critical manufacturing and distribution
schedules. Given the wide variety of systems, products and services that we
offer and the large number of our suppliers and contract manufacturers that are
dispersed across the globe, problems could arise in planning production and
managing inventory levels that could seriously harm us. Among the problems that
could arise are component shortages, excess supply and risks related to
fixed-price contracts that would require us to pay more than the open market
price.

Supply shortages. We occasionally may experience a short supply of
certain component parts as a result of strong demand in the industry for
those parts or problems experienced by suppliers. If shortages or delays
persist, the price of these components may increase, or the components may
not be available at all. We may not be able to secure enough components at
reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build new products in a
timely manner in the quantities or configurations needed. Accordingly, our
revenues and gross margins could suffer until other sources can be
developed.

Oversupply. In order to secure components for the production of new
products, at times we may make advance payments to suppliers, or we may
enter into non-cancelable purchase commitments with vendors. If we fail to
anticipate customer demand properly, a temporary oversupply of parts could
result in excess or obsolete components which could adversely affect our
gross margins.

Long-term pricing commitments. As a result of binding price or purchase
commitments with vendors, we may be obligated to purchase components at
prices that are higher than those available in the current market. In the
event that we become committed to purchase components for prices in excess
of the current market price, we may be at a disadvantage to competitors
who have access to components at lower prices, and our gross margins could
suffer.
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In order to be successful, we must retain and motivate key employees, and
failure to do so could seriously harm us.

In order to be successful, we must retain and motivate executives and other
key employees, including those in managerial, technical, marketing and
information technology support positions. In particular, our product generation
efforts depend on hiring and retaining qualified engineers. Attracting and
retaining skilled solutions providers in the IT support business and qualified
sales representatives 1is also critical to our future. Experienced management
and technical, marketing and support personnel in the information technology
industry are in high demand and competition for their talents is intense. This
is particularly the case in Silicon Valley, where HP's headquarters and certain
key research and development facilities are located. The loss of key employees
could have a significant impact on our operations. We also must continue to
motivate employees and keep them focused on HP's strategies and goals, which
may be particularly difficult due to morale challenges posed by workforce
reductions and general uncertainty.

The economic downturn could adversely affect our revenues, gross margins and
expenses.

Our revenues and gross margins depend significantly on the overall demand
for computing and imaging products and services, particularly in the product
and service segments in which we compete. Softening demand for our products and
services caused by the ongoing economic downturn may result in decreased
revenues, earnings levels or growth rates and problems with the saleability of
inventory and realizability of customer receivables. The global economy has
weakened and market conditions continue to be challenging. As a result,
individuals and companies are delaying or reducing expenditures, including
those for information technology. We have observed effects of the global
economic downturn in many areas of our business. The downturn has contributed
to reported net revenue declines during fiscal 2001. We have also experienced
gross margin declines, reflecting the effect of competitive pressures as well
as inventory writedowns and charges associated with the cancellation of planned
production line expansion. Our selling, general and administrative expense also
was impacted due in part to an increase in bad debt write-offs and additions to
reserves in our receivables portfolio. The economic downturn also has led to
restructuring actions and contributed to writedowns to reflect the impairment
of certain investments in our investment portfolio. Further delays or
reductions in information technology spending could have a material adverse
effect on demand for our products and services, and consequently, our results
of operations, prospects and stock price.

Due to the international nature of our business, political or economic changes
could harm our future revenues, costs and expenses and financial condition.

Sales outside the United States make up more than half of our revenues. Our
future revenues, costs and expenses and financial condition could be adversely
affected by a variety of international factors, including:

changes in a country's or region's political or economical conditions;
longer accounts receivable cycles;

trade protection measures;

import or export licensing requirements;

overlap or different corporate structures;

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;
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differing technology standards and/or customer requirements;

import or export licensing requirements, which could affect our ability to
obtain favorable terms for components or lead to penalties or restrictions;
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problems caused by the conversion of various European currencies to the
euro and macroeconomic dislocations that may result; and

natural disasters.

A portion of our product and component manufacturing, along with key
suppliers, also is located outside of the United States, and also could be
disrupted by some of the international factors described above. In particular,
along with most other PC vendors, we have engaged manufacturers in Taiwan for
the production of notebook computers. In 1999, Taiwan suffered a major
earthquake, and in 2000 it suffered a typhoon, both of which resulted in
temporary communications and supply disruptions. In addition, we procure
components from Japan, which also suffers from earthquakes periodically.
Moreover, we are in the process of acquiring Indigo, N.V., which has research
and development and manufacturing operations located in Israel, which may be
more subject to disruptions in light of recent world events.

Impairment of investment and financing portfolios could harm our net earnings.

We have an investment portfolio that includes minority equity and debt
investments and financing for the purchase of our products and services. In
most cases, we do not attempt to reduce or eliminate our market exposure on
these investments and may incur losses related to the impairment of these
investments and therefore charges to net earnings. Some of our investments are
in public and privately held companies that are still in the start-up or
development stage, which have inherent risks because the markets for the
technologies or products they have under development are typically in the early
stages and may never develop. Furthermore, the values of our investments in
publicly-traded companies are subject to significant market price volatility.
Our investments in technology companies often are coupled with a strategic
commercial relationship. Our commercial agreements with these companies may not
be sufficient to allow us to obtain and integrate such products our technology
into our technology or product lines or otherwise benefit from the
relationship, and these companies may be subsequently acquired by third
parties, including competitors. Moreover, due to the economic downturn and
difficulties that may be faced by some of the companies to which we have
supplied financing, our investment portfolio could be further impaired.

In order to manage our portfolio of products and technology and further our
competitive objectives, we must successfully complete acquisitions and
alliances that enhance our strategic businesses and product lines and divest
non-strategic businesses and product lines.

As part of our business strategy, we frequently engage in discussions with

third parties regarding, and enter into agreements relating to, possible
acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures in order to
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manage our product and technology portfolios and further strategic objectives.
In order to pursue this strategy successfully, we must identify suitable
acquisition, alliance or divestiture candidates, complete these transactions,
some of which may be large and complex, and integrate acquired companies.
Integration and other risks of acquisitions and strategic alliances can be more
pronounced for larger and more complicated transactions, or if multiple
acquisitions are pursued simultaneously. However, if we fail to identify and
complete these transactions, we may be required to expend resources to
internally develop products and technology, may be at a competitive
disadvantage or may be adversely affected by negative market perceptions, which
may have a material effect on our revenues and selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Integration issues are complex, time-consuming and expensive and, without
proper planning and implementation, could significantly disrupt our business.
The challenges involved in integration include:

demonstrating to customers that the transaction will not result in adverse
changes in client service standards or business focus and helping

customers conduct business easily;
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consolidating and rationalizing corporate IT and administrative
infrastructures;
consolidating manufacturing operations;
combining product offerings;

coordinating sales and marketing efforts to communicate our capabilities
effectively;

coordinating and rationalizing research and development activities to
enhance introduction of new products and technologies with reduced cost;

preserving distribution, marketing or other important relationships and
resolving potential conflicts that may arise;

minimizing the diversion of management attention from ongoing business
concerns;

persuading employees that business cultures are compatible, maintaining
employee morale and retaining key employees;

coordinating and combining overseas operations, relationships and
facilities, which may be subject to additional constraints imposed by
local laws and regulations; and

managing integration issues shortly after or pending the completion of
other independent reorganizations.

We may not successfully address these integration challenges in a timely
manner, or at all, and we may not realize the anticipated benefits or synergies
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of the transaction to the extent, or in the timeframe, anticipated. Currently,
we have several acquisitions that are pending completion, including the
proposed merger with Compaq, or that recently have been completed and are still
being integrated. In addition to the pending Compaq transaction, we have
pending a proposed acquisition of Indigo N.V., a leading commercial and
industrial printing systems company. In 2001, we completed acquisitions of
StorageApps, Inc., a provider of storage virtualization solutions, and
Bluestone Software, Inc., which became part of our middleware division. The
number of pending transactions and the size and scope of the proposed merger
with Compag increase both the scope and consequences of ongoing integration
risks.

Even if an acquisition or alliance is successfully integrated, we may not
receive the expected benefits of the transaction. Managing acquisitions,
alliances, joint ventures and divestitures requires varying levels of
management resources, which may divert our attention from other business
operations. These transactions also may result in significant costs and
expenses and charges to earnings. As a result, any completed, pending or future
transactions may contribute to financial results of the combined company that
differ from the investment community's expectations in a given quarter.

Terrorist acts and acts of war may seriously harm our business and revenues,
costs and expenses and financial condition.

Terrorist acts or acts of war (wherever located around the world) may cause
damage or disruption to HP, our employees, facilities, partners, suppliers,
distributors, resellers, or customers, which could significantly impact our
revenues, costs and expenses and financial condition. The terrorist attacks
that took place in the United States on September 11, 2001 were unprecedented
events that have created many economic and political uncertainties, some of
which may materially harm our business and results of operations. The long-term
effects on our business of the September 11, 2001 attacks are unknown. The
potential for future terrorist attacks, the national and international
responses to terrorist attacks, and other acts of war or hostility have created
many economic and political uncertainties, which could adversely affect our
business and results of operations in ways that cannot
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presently be predicted. In addition, as a major multi-national company with
headquarters and significant operations located in the United States, we may be
impacted by actions against the United States. We are predominantly uninsured
for losses and interruptions caused by terrorist acts and acts of war.

Business disruptions could seriously harm our future revenues and financial
condition and increase our costs and expenses.

Our worldwide operations could be subject to natural disasters and other
business disruptions, which could seriously harm our revenues and financial
condition and increase our costs and expenses. Our corporate headquarters, a
portion of our research and development activities, other critical business
operations and some of our suppliers are located in California, near major
earthquake faults. The ultimate impact on us, our significant suppliers and our
general infrastructure of being located near major earthquake faults is
unknown, but our revenues and financial condition and our costs and expenses
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could be significantly impacted in the event of a major earthquake. In
addition, some areas, including California, have experienced, and may continue
to experience, ongoing power shortages, which have resulted in "rolling
blackouts." These blackouts could cause disruptions to our operations or the
operations of our suppliers, distributors and resellers, or customers. We are
predominantly uninsured for losses and interruptions caused by earthquakes,
power outages and other natural disasters.

The revenues and profitability of our operations have historically varied.

Our revenues and profit margins vary among our products, customer groups and
geographic markets. Our revenue mix in future periods will be different than
our current revenue mix. Overall profitability in any given period is dependent
partially on the product, customer and geographic mix reflected in that
period's net revenue, and therefore revenue and gross margin trends cannot be
reliably predicted. Actual trends may cause us to adjust our operations, which
could cause period-to-period fluctuations in our results of operations.

Failure to execute planned cost reductions successfully could result in total
costs and expenses that are greater than expected.

Historically, we have undertaken restructuring plans to bring operational
expenses to appropriate levels for each of our businesses, while simultaneously
implementing extensive new company-wide expense-control programs. In addition
to previously announced workforce reductions, we may have additional workforce
reductions in the future. The proposed merger with Compaq contemplates
workforce reductions that are expected to involve approximately 15,000
employees of the combined company worldwide, and workforce reductions would
also be expected if the proposed merger is not completed. Significant risks
associated with these actions that may impair our ability to achieve
anticipated cost reductions or that may otherwise harm our business include
delays in implementation of anticipated reductions in force in highly regulated
locations outside of the United States, particularly in Europe and Asia,
redundancies among restructuring programs, and the failure to meet operational
targets due to the loss of employees or decreases in employee morale.

HP's stock price has historically fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate.

HP's stock price, like that of other technology companies, can be volatile.
Some of the factors that can affect our stock price are:

the announcement of new products, services or technological innovations by
HP or our competitors;

quarterly increases or decreases in HP's revenue or earnings;
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changes in quarterly revenue or earnings estimates by the investment
community; and

speculation in the press or investment community about HP's strategic
position, financial condition, results of operations, business or
significant transactions.
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General market conditions or domestic or international macroeconomic and
geopolitical factors unrelated to HP's performance also may affect HP's stock
price. For these reasons, investors should not rely on recent trends to predict
future stock prices or financial results. In addition, following periods of
volatility in a company's securities, securities class action litigation
against a company 1s sometimes instituted. This type of litigation could result
in substantial costs and the diversion of management time and resources.

Unforeseen environmental costs could impact our future net earnings.

Some of our operations use substances regulated under various federal, state
and international laws governing the environment. We could be subject to
liability for remediation if we do not handle these substances in compliance
with applicable laws. It is our policy to apply strict standards for
environmental protection to sites inside and outside the United States, even
when not subject to local government regulations. We record a liability for
environmental remediation and related costs when we consider the costs to be
probable and the amount of the costs can be reasonably estimated. We have not
incurred environmental costs that are presently material, and we are not
presently subject to known environmental liabilities that we expect to be
material.

Some anti-takeover provisions contained in HP's certificate of incorporation,
bylaws and shareowner rights plan, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could
impair a takeover attempt.

HP has provisions in its certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each of
which could have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an
acquisition deemed undesirable by the HP Board of Directors. These include
provisions:

authorizing blank check preferred stock, which could be issued with
voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to its common
stock;

limiting the liability of, and providing indemnification to, directors and
officers;

limiting the ability of HP shareowners to call special meetings;

requiring advance notice of shareowner proposals for business to be
conducted at meetings of HP shareowners and for nominations of candidates
for election to the HP Board of Directors;

controlling the procedures for conduct of Board and shareowner meetings
and election and removal of directors; and

specifying that shareholders may take action only at a duly called annual
or special meeting of shareowners.

These provisions, alone or together, could deter or delay hostile takeovers,
proxy contests and changes in control or management of HP.

In addition, HP has adopted a shareowner rights plan. The rights are not
intended to prevent a takeover of HP. However, the rights may have the effect
of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of HP deemed
undesirable by the HP Board of Directors. The rights will cause substantial
dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire HP on terms or in a
manner not approved by the HP Board of Directors, except pursuant to an offer
conditioned upon redemption of the rights.
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As a Delaware corporation, HP also is subject to provisions of Delaware law,
including Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation law, which prevents
some shareowners from engaging in certain business combinations without
approval of the holders of substantially all of HP's outstanding common stock.

Any provision of HP's certificate of incorporation or bylaws, HP's
shareowner rights plan or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or
deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for HP shareowners to
receive a premium for their shares of HP common stock, and could also affect
the price that some investors are willing to pay for HP common stock.

HP faces numerous additional risks in connection with the proposed transaction
with Compaq, which may adversely affect our results of operations whether or
not the merger is completed, and the merger may not be completed on a timely
basis or at all.

In response to the pending merger transaction involving Compaqg, customers
and distributors of HP may defer purchasing decisions or elect to switch to
other suppliers due to uncertainty about the direction of our product offerings
following the merger and our willingness to support and service existing
products. In order to address customer uncertainty, we may incur additional
obligations. Uncertainty surrounding the proposed transaction also may have an
adverse effect on employee morale and retention, and result in the diversion of
management attention and resources. In addition, the market values of HP common
stock and Compaqg common stock will continue to vary prior to completion of the
merger transaction due to changes in the business, operations or prospects of
HP or Compaqg, market assessments of the merger, regulatory considerations,
market and economic considerations, or other factors. However, there will be no
adjustment to the exchange ratio between HP and Compaqg shares in connection
with the merger, and the parties do not have a right to terminate the merger
agreement based upon changes in the market price of either HP common stock or
Compaqg common stock.

Completion of the merger also is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. HP and Compaqg may be unable to obtain regulatory or shareowner
approvals required to complete the merger in a timely manner or at all. In
order to obtain regulatory approval, we may be required to comply with material
restrictions or conditions, which could include a complete or partial license,
divestiture, spin-off or the holding separate of assets or businesses. HP and
Compaq also are required to obtain separate shareowner approvals in connection
with the merger. Walter B. Hewlett, Eleanor Hewlett Gimon, Mary Hewlett Jaffe
and The William R. Hewlett Revocable Trust have announced that they intend to
vote against the proposal to approve the issuance of HP common stock in
connection with the Compag merger. In addition, each of the William and Flora
Hewlett Foundation and the David and Lucile Packard Foundation has announced
its intention to vote against the proposal to approve the issuance of HP common
stock in connection with the Compag merger. Mr. Hewlett (co-trustee of the
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William R. Hewlett Revocable Trust and Chairman of the Hewlett Foundation),
Edwin van Bronkhorst (co-trustee of the William R. Hewlett Revocable Trust and
trustee of certain Hewlett family trusts) and The William R. Hewlett Revocable
Trust have filed a preliminary proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission stating that they intend to solicit proxies from HP shareowners
against the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of HP common stock in
connection with the Compag merger and have disseminated to HP shareowners
soliciting materials encouraging HP shareowners to vote against the Compag
merger. If the merger is not completed, the price of HP common stock may
decline to the extent that the current market price of HP common stock reflects
a market assumption that the merger will be completed. Moreover, HP would not
derive the strategic benefits expected to result from the merger, such as
creating a more complete and balanced product and services portfolio and
providing economies of scale in businesses such as PCs. In addition, our
business may be harmed to the extent that customers, suppliers or others
believe that we cannot effectively compete in the marketplace without the
merger or there is customer and employee uncertainty surrounding the future
direction of the product and service offerings and strategy of HP on a
standalone basis. We also will be required to pay significant costs incurred
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in connection with the merger, including legal, accounting and a portion of the
financial advisory fees, whether or not the merger is completed. Moreover,
under specified circumstances, HP may be required to pay Compaq a termination
fee of $675 million in connection with the termination of the merger agreement.

If the merger is completed, we will continue to face risks associated with
integration of the businesses and operations of HP and Compaq, and we may not
realize the anticipated benefits or synergies of the merger (primarily
associated with anticipated restructurings and other operational efficiencies)
to the extent, or in the timeframe, anticipated. In addition to the integration
risks previously discussed, our ability to realize these benefits and synergies
could be impacted adversely by practical or legal constraints on combining
operations or implementing workforce reductions. In addition to the costs and
expenses previously discussed, we will be required to make payments to
executive officers and key employees under a retention plan adopted in
connection with the merger. Also, any downgrade in our credit ratings
associated with the merger could adversely affect our ability to borrow and
result in more restrictive borrowing terms, including increased borrowing
costs, more restrictive covenants and the extension of less open credit. This
in turn could affect our internal cost of capital estimates and therefore
operational decisions. In addition, the effective tax rate of HP following the
merger is uncertain and could exceed HP's currently reported tax rate and the
weighted average of the pre-merger tax rates of HP and Compaq. Moreover,
charges to earnings resulting from the application of the purchase method of
accounting may affect the market value of HP's common stock adversely following
the merger, as HP will incur additional depreciation and amortization expense
over the useful lives of certain of the net tangible and intangible assets
acquired in connection with the merger, and, to the extent the value of
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives acquired in connection with
the merger becomes impaired, HP may be required to incur material charges
relating to the impairment of those assets. The foregoing risks are described
in more detail in HP's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 15, 2001 and
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incorporated by reference herein.
ADOPTION OF THE EURO

In 1997, we established a dedicated task force to address the issues raised
by the introduction of a European single currency, the euro. The euro's initial
implementation was effective as of January 1, 1999, and the transition period
continued through January 1, 2002 when the euro was adopted as the physical
currency and legal tender in twelve European countries, the final step of the
transition. On January 1, 1999, we began converting our product prices from
local currencies to the euro as required. We implemented system changes to give
multi-currency capability to internal applications and to ensure that external
partners' systems processing euro conversions were compliant with the European
Council regulations. In addition, we implemented design changes to support
display and printing of the euro character by impacted HP products. In 2000,
our task force implemented a comprehensive euro program to manage the
changeover of all operational aspects of our business in preparation for the
final transition in January 2002. We experienced no significant operational
issues upon the final implementation date.

The introduction and use of the euro has not had a material effect on our
foreign exchange and hedging activities, use of derivative instruments or
overall foreign currency risk, and we do not presently expect that it will. We
do not expect a material impact on product pricing, but we will continue to
monitor this aspect of the change going forward. All costs associated with the
conversion to the euro are expensed to operations as incurred. While we will
continue to evaluate the impact of the euro over time, based on currently
available information, we do not believe that the use of the euro currency will
have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial condition, cash
flows or results of operations.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 141, "Business
Combinations" and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." SFAS
141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for by the purchase
method of accounting and changes the criteria for recognition of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination. The provisions of SFAS 141 apply to
all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. We do not expect that
the adoption of SFAS 141 will have a material effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized;
however, these assets must be reviewed at least annually for impairment.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives will continue to be amortized over
their respective useful lives. The standard also establishes specific guidance
for testing for impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives. The provisions of SFAS 142 will be effective for our fiscal year
2003, with early adoption permitted at the beginning of our fiscal year 2002.
However, goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001 are
subject immediately to the non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142. We are
currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact that the adoption
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of SFAS 142 will have on our consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." SFAS 144 amends existing
accounting guidance on asset impairment and provides a single accounting model
for long-lived assets to be disposed of. Among other provisions, the new rules
change the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale. The standard
also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for
reporting as discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing
losses on such operations. The provisions of SFAS 144 will be effective for our
fiscal year 2003 and will be applied prospectively. We are currently in the
process of evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS 144 will
have on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to foreign currency
exchange rate, interest rate and equity market price risks that could impact
our results of operations. Our risk management strategy includes the use of
derivative financial instruments, including forwards, swaps and purchased
options, to hedge certain of these exposures. Our objective is to offset gains
and losses resulting from these exposures with gains and losses on the
derivative contracts used to hedge them, thereby reducing volatility of
earnings or protecting fair values of assets and liabilities. We do not enter

into any trading or speculative positions with regard to derivative instruments.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in our sales
commitments, anticipated sales, anticipated purchases and assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We transact
business in approximately 30 currencies worldwide, of which the most
significant to our operations are the euro, the Japanese yen and the British
pound. For most currencies we are a net receiver of foreign currencies and,
therefore, benefit from a weaker U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a
stronger U.S. dollar relative to those foreign currencies in which we transact
significant amounts of business. For the Japanese yen, however, we are a net
payver and therefore tend to benefit from a stronger U.S. dollar against the
yen. We have performed a sensitivity analysis as of October 31, 2001 and 2000,
using a modeling technique that measures the change in the fair values arising
from a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of foreign currency
exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar with all other variables held
constant. The analysis covers all of our foreign exchange forward contracts
offset by the underlying exposures. Options are excluded from the analysis. The
foreign
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currency exchange rates used were based on the spot rates in effect at October
31, 2001 and 2000. The sensitivity analysis indicated that a hypothetical 10%
adverse movement in foreign currency exchange rates would result in a loss in
the fair values of our foreign exchange derivative financial instruments, net
of exposures, of $52 million at October 31, 2001 and $45 million at October 31,
2000.

48



Edgar Filing: HEWLETT PACKARD CO - Form 10-K/A

Interest rate risk

We are also exposed to interest rate risk related to our fixed rate debt and
investment portfolios and financing receivables. We have performed a
sensitivity analysis as of October 31, 2001 and 2000, using a modeling
technique that measures the change in the fair values arising from a
hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the levels of interest rates with all
other variables held constant. The analysis covers our fixed rate unhedged
debt, unhedged investment instruments and financing receivables and is based on
our assumed overall maturities of three months for short-term debt and
investments, three years for long-term debt and investments and the actual
maturities for financing receivables. The discount rates used were based on the
market interest rates in effect at October 31, 2001 and 2000. The sensitivity
analysis indicated that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rates
would result in a loss in the fair values of our debt and investment
instruments and financing receivables of $14 million at October 31, 2001 and
$36 million at October 31, 2000.

Equity price risk

We are also exposed to equity price risk inherent in our portfolio of
publicly-traded equity securities, which had an estimated fair value of $148
million at October 31, 2001 and $328 million at October 31, 2000. We monitor
our equity investments on a periodic basis. In the event that the carrying
value of the equity investment exceeds its fair value, and the decline in value
is determined to be other-than temporary, the carrying value is reduced to its
current fair value. Generally, we do not attempt to reduce or eliminate our
market exposure on these equity securities. We do not hold our equity
securities for trading or speculative purposes. A hypothetical 30% adverse
change in the stock prices of our publicly-traded equity securities would
result in a loss in the fair values of our marketable equity securities of $44
million at October 31, 2001 and $98 million at October 31, 2000.

Actual gains and losses in the future may differ materially from the
sensitivity analyses based on changes in the timing and amount of interest
rate, foreign currency exchange rate and equity price movements and our actual

exposures and hedges.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2001 and 2000, and
the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended October 31, 2001. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 14 (a) (2) for the years ended October 31, 2001 and 2000. These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries at October 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended October 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects
the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the
Company changed its method of accounting for revenue recognition.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
San Jose, California
November 13, 2001,
except for Note 19, as to which the date is
December 6, 2001
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index
appearing under Item 14 (a) (1) present fairly, in all material respects, the
results of operations and cash flows of Hewlett-Packard Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended October 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in
our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing
under Item 14 (a) (2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein for the year ended October 31, 1999, when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements. These consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of
the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion. We have not audited the consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedules of Hewlett-Packard Company for any period
subsequent to October 31, 1999.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California

November 23, 1999, except for the stock split disclosed
in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, as
to which the date is October 27, 2000.
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Statement of Management Responsibility

HP's management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and
objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and other financial
information included in HP's 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, and reflect the effects of
certain estimates and judgments made by management.

HP's management maintains an effective system of internal control that is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and
transactions are properly recorded and executed in accordance with management's
authorization. The system is regularly monitored by direct management review
and by internal auditors who conduct an extensive program of audits throughout
HP. HP selects and trains qualified people who are provided with and expected
to adhere to HP's Standards of Business Conduct. These standards, which set
forth the highest principles of business ethics and conduct, are a key element
of HP's control system.

HP's consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the two years
in the period ended October 31, 2001 have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
independent auditors. HP's consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended October 31, 1999 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
independent accountants. Their respective audits were conducted in accordance
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with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, and included a
review of financial controls and tests of accounting records and procedures as
they respectively considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which consists of outside
directors, meets regularly with management, the internal auditors and the
independent auditors to review accounting, reporting, auditing and internal
control matters. The Audit Committee has direct and private access to both
internal and external auditors.

/s/ CARLETON S. FIORINA /s/ ROBERT P. WAYMAN

Carleton S. Fiorina Robert P. Wayman

President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President, Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial

Officer
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In millions, except per share amounts 2001

Net revenue:

2o Yo 5 w0 $37,498
LTS U o 7,325
FinancCing InCOmME . & vttt ittt e et et e ettt e ettt ettt eeeeeee e eeaeeee e 403

TotaAl NEL FOVENMUE . « it ittt ittt ettt ettt et et eeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneean 45,226

Cost of sales:

= e i = Y 28,370
LTS U o N 4,870
Financing Interest . ittt it ittt e e e ettt et e ettt e e 234
Total COSt Of SALlES . i ittt ittt it et et ettt ettt ettt et eeeeeeeneeaeean 33,474
[l T =T (1= ek i 5 o 11,752
Operating expenses:
Research and development .ottt it ittt et ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeaaeeaeenes 2,670
Selling, general and administrative. ... .. ..ttt ittt eenneeeeeeanns 7,259
ReStrUCTUTrING Charge S . @it it i it e et it e e e e ettt ee ettt eeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeenns 384
Total OPEraling EXPEINSE S v v vttt it e e e e ettt aeeeeee e eeaeeeeeesenaeeeeeeeenns 10,313
Earnings from OpPeralionS . @ vt ittt ittt ettt e e et eeee ettt aeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeeees 1,439
Interest and Other, Nel ... ittt ittt ittt et ettt et ettt eeeteeeeeeeneeaeeens 171
Net investment (loSSEeS) galnS .. i ittt ii ittt ettt eeaeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeenns (455)
Litdigation settlement . ...ttt ittt et ettt ettt ettt e (400)
(Losses) gains on divestifUre S . ..ttt ittt ittt ettt tee et eeeeeeeeeeanns (53)

Earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item, cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle and LaXeS . . u v ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeenneens 702
Provision fOr LameS . ittt ettt ittt ettt i e e e e e 78

2000

$41,653
6,848
369



Net earnings from discontinued operations
Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of debt, net of taxes.........
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes..............

Net earnings
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Net earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Basic net earnings per share:

Net earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.......... ...
Net earnings from discontinued operations...... ...ttt ittt eennenneeeens
Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of debt, net of taxes......
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes...........

D S T Y B o e 1 o L = O

Diluted net earnings per share:

Net earnings from continuing operations before extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........... ...
Net earnings from discontinued operations. ... ...ttt it eeeeneneeeeens
Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of debt, net of taxes......
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes...........

D L T Y= o o e 1 o L =

Weighted average shares used to compute net earnings per share:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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October 31
In millions, except par value 2001 2000

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . .v. ettt ittt et eeneeeeeennens $ 4,197 $ 3,415
Short—-term investments. ... ... ..ttt itneeneeneenns 139 592
Accounts receivable, nNet.......i ittt ittt eeeneennns 4,488 6,394
Financing receivables, nNet. ... ...ttt tennnnennnn 2,183 2,174
0 0 Y o w3 YR 5,204 5,699
Other current asset S . ...ttt ittt ittt et ee et 5,094 4,970
Total current asSsSel S . .. i i ii ittt ittt eeeeeeeeeenn 21,305 23,244
Property, plant and equipment, net........ ...ttt 4,397 4,500
Long-term investments and other assets..........cciieiiee... 6,882 6,265

624 3,561

- 136

56 —-
(272) —-

$ 408 $ 3,697
$ 0.32 s 1.80
- 0.07

0.03 —-
(0.14) -

$ 0.21 $ 1.87
$ 0.32 S 1.73
- 0.07

0.03 —-
(0.14) -

$ 0.21 $ 1.80
1,936 1,979
1,974 2,077
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] o= T A = $32,584 $34,009

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Notes payable and short-term borrowings.................. $ 1,722 $ 1,555
Accounts pavable. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e 3,791 5,049
Employee compensation and benefits.......... ... L. 1,477 1,584
TaXesS ON CaAXNINg S . v ittt ittt et tteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneenens 1,818 2,046
Deferred FeVENUE . « vt ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt e eeeeeneeneeens 1,867 1,759
Other accrued liabilitiesS. ... u ittt eeneennenns 3,289 3,204
Total current liabilities.......c.iiiiiiiiiiininnennnnn 13,964 15,197
Long—term debt . ...ttt it ettt et e e e e 3,729 3,402
Other 11abilities. ittt ittt ettt eeneeeennns 938 1,201

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (300 shares authorized;
NONE 1S SUEA) v v it it et et et ettt et ettt et eeeeeeeeaen —= —=
Common stock, $0.01 par value (9,600 and 4,800 shares
authorized at October 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively;
1,939 and 1,947 shares issued and outstanding at

October 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively) .........c.o.... 19 19
Additional paid-in capital.......uiiiiii ittt eennn 200 -
Retained earnings. ...ttt ii ittt it ettt eeeeeeennn 13,693 14,097
Accumulated other comprehensive income................... 41 93

Total stockholders' equUity......iiiiiiiiiennnennn. 13,953 14,209
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.......eeueeeuee... $32,584 $34,009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended October 31
In millions 2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings, excluding net earnings from discontinued
[ ST ot il I o =TS S 408 $ 3,561 $ 3,104
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings from continuing
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net investment 10SSes (ainsS) «uv vt iiiii ittt teeeeeeeeeneeeens 455 (41) (31)
Losses (gains) from divestitures.........coiiiiiiiienenneennsn 53 (203) —=
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Gain on early extinguishment of debt, net of taxes............ (56) - -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
Lo = <= = 272 - -
Depreciation and amortization..........u ittt eennnnn 1,369 1,241 1,146
Provision for doubtful accounts--accounts receivable.......... 206 122 102
Provision for doubtful accounts--financing receivables........ 232 60 38
Tax benefit from employee stock plans.........eeiieieneneeenn. 16 495 289
Deferred taxes ON €arNinNgS. ... uii ittt eeeeeeeenneeeeeeeannns (970) (689) (171)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and financing receivables..........iiiiiinnn. 566 (1,384) (1,715)
IS 0 VY o i Y 1,096 (845) (171)
AccoUunts payvable. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e (1,249) 1,544 751
TAXeS ON EaATXNINg S . v i i ittt ittt ettt ee et aeeeeeaeeeannns (195) 175 (639)
Other current assets and liabilities.............iiiiia... 362 (282) 330
Other, Net ...ttt it et et e et ettt ettt et e e e eeeeanenn (4) (49) 63
Net cash provided by operating activities.............. 2,561 3,705 3,096

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in property, plant and equipment..............ccoeiie... (1,527) (1,737) (1,134)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment............... 447 420 542
Purchases 0f d1nvVesStmMent S . v i v it ittt ittt et et e ettt et ettt (434) (1,376) (1,015)
Maturities and sales of investments........ii ittt eennnnns 742 1,004 1,063
Cash acquired through (paid for) business acquisitions, net....... 106 - (166)
Net proceeds from divestitures. ... ..ttt ittt teeneneeeeens 117 448 35
[ 3 ol o o 1 O —— (130) 47

Net cash used in investing activities.................. (549) (1,371) (628)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in notes payable and short-term borrowings.... 303 (1,297) 2,399
Issuance of long-term debt ... ...ttt ittt eneeaaens 904 1,936 240
Payment of long-term debt..... ... ittt ittt (290) (474) (1,047)
Repurchase of zero-coupon subordinated convertible notes.......... (640) - -
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans............... 354 748 660
Repurchase of commoOn StOCK. ...ttt ittt ettt ettt et eeeeaeens (1,240) (5,570) (2,643)

I R LY o U (621) (638) (650)
Net cash used in financing activities.................. (1,230) (5,295) (1,041)

Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations............... - 965 (62)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..............ieunn.. 782 (1,996) 1,365
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period..................... 3,415 5,411 4,046
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period........c.iiiiiiiiiineeennnn $ 4,197 $ 3,415 $ 5,411

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Common Stock

Accumula

Other

Retained Comprehen

Earnings

$16,393
3,491

(959)

Income

——————————————— Additional
In millions, except number of Number of Par Paid-in
shares in thousands Shares Value Capital
Balance October 31, 1998. .. ...ttt nnnnnnnnn 2,030,806 $20 $ 506
Net earningsS. ...ttt ittt et aeeeeeennn - - -
Issuance of common stock.........iiiiiiinennn. 40,416 —— 889
Repurchase of common stock.............cco..... (62,084) —— (1,684)
Tax benefit from employee stock plans.......... - - 289
Dividends . ittt e e e e e e e e e - - -
Balance October 31, 1999. .. ...ttt innnnnn 2,009,138 20 ——

Net earningsS. ...ttt ittt taeeeeeenns - - -
Net unrealized gain on available-for-
sale securities. ...t ittt e - - -

Comprehensive income........ ..ottt neennnn

Issuance of common stock.........uiiiiieinennn. 35,152 —— 741
Repurchase of common stock.............coo.... (96, 978) (1) (2,571)
Tax benefit from employee stock plans.......... - - 495
Initial public offering and spin-off of
Agilent Technologies......c.uoiiii i eenenennn. - - 1,335
Dividends . vttt it e e e e e e e e e - - -
Balance October 31, 2000.. ...t ii ittt neeenennn 1,947,312 19 ——

Net earningsS. ...ttt ittt eeeeeeeennn - - -
Net unrealized loss on available-for-

sale securities. ...t ittt e e - - -
Net unrealized gain on derivative instruments.. - - -

Comprehensive income.........iiitiiienneeeennnn

Issuance of common stock.........iiiiiiiinenn.. 36,552 —— 1,233
Repurchase of common stock..............cco..... (45,036) - (1,049)
Tax benefit from employee stock plans.......... - - 16
Dividends . ittt it e e e e e e e e e e - - -

Balance October 31, 2001 ... .ttt iiieeeeeennnnnnnnn 1,938,828 $19 S 200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of

Hewlett-Packard Company ("HP") and its wholly-owned and controlled
majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
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transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in HP's financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition
Accounting Changes

HP adopted Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements" in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, retroactive to November 1, 2000. SAB 101
summarizes certain of the SEC's views in applying accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States to revenue recognition in financial
statements. The primary impact of HP's adoption of SAB 101 was to delay the
recognition of product revenue from the date of shipment until the date of
delivery, when title and risk of loss transfer to the customer, provided that
no significant obligations exist upon delivery. HP has restated its
consolidated results of operations for the first three quarters of fiscal 2001,
including a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of $272
million, net of income taxes of $108 million, which was recorded as a reduction
of net income as of the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2001. In
conjunction with the cumulative effect adjustment, an increase to deferred
revenue of $1.0 billion and an increase in inventory of $631 million was
recorded on November 1, 2000. This amount consisted of equipment that had been
shipped prior to October 31, 2000, but had not yet been received by the
customer at that date. The $1.0 billion was recognized as revenue in 2001,
along with the associated $631 million of cost of sales, both of which were
included in the cumulative effect adjustment and resulted in after-tax earnings
of $272 million. Had SAB 101 been effective for all prior fiscal years
presented, the pro forma results and earnings per share would not have been
materially different from the previously reported results.

HP early adopted Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 00-25,
"Vendor Income Statement Characterization of Consideration Paid to a Reseller
of the Vendor's Products" in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. In April 2001,
the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-25, concluding that consideration
from a vendor to a reseller of the vendor's products is generally presumed to
be an adjustment to the selling prices of the vendor's products and, therefore,
should be classified as a reduction of revenue. HP had previously classified
consideration paid to distributors and resellers of its products as selling,
general and administrative expense. HP has reclassified $281 million in 2000
and $297 million in 1999 from selling, general and administrative expense to a
reduction of revenue to conform to the current year presentation.

General

Revenue 1is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
products are delivered or services rendered, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. The following are the
policies applicable to HP's major categories of revenue transactions:

Products
Revenue from product sales, including sales to distributors and resellers,

is recognized when title and risk of loss transfer to the customer, generally
at the time the product is delivered to the customer. Revenue is deferred
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

when customer acceptance is uncertain, when significant obligations remain, or
when undelivered products or services are essential to the functionality of
delivered products. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, price
protection, rebates, and other offerings that occur under sales programs
established with HP's distributors and resellers. The estimated cost of
post-sale obligations, including basic product warranties, is accrued based on
historical experience at the time revenue is recognized.

Services

Revenue from support or maintenance contracts, including extended warranty
programs, 1s recognized ratably over the contractual period. Amounts invoiced
to customers in excess of revenue recognized on support or maintenance
contracts are recorded as deferred revenue until the revenue recognition
criteria are met. Revenue for time and material contracts is recognized as
services are rendered. Revenue from long-term, fixed-price service contracts,
such as certain outsourcing or consulting arrangements, 1is recognized over the
contractual period on a percentage-of-completion basis. Revenue in excess of
amounts invoiced on long-term, fixed-price contracts are recorded as unbilled
receivables and are included in trade accounts receivable. Losses on
fixed-price contracts are recognized in the period that the loss becomes
evident.

Software

Revenue from software is comprised of software licensing and post-contract
customer support. Software revenue is allocated to the license and support
elements using vendor specific objective evidence of fair value ("VSOE") or, in
the absence of VSOE, the residual method. Revenue allocated to software
licenses is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is
probable ("the four basic criteria"). Revenue allocated to post-contract
support is recognized ratably over the term of the support contract, assuming
the four basic criteria are met.

Financing

Revenue from the sale of equipment under sales-type leases and
direct-financing leases 1s recognized as product revenue at the inception of
the lease. Associated financing income is earned on an accrual basis under an
effective annual yield method. Prior to 2001, HP recorded financing income as a
component of interest and other, net, along with the interest cost associated
with monies borrowed to fund this financing activity. HP has reclassified
financing income to revenue and financing interest expense to the related cost
of sales to conform to the current year presentation.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized as the fees accrue.
Revenue Arrangements that Include Multiple Elements

Revenue for transactions that include multiple elements such as hardware,

58



Edgar Filing: HEWLETT PACKARD CO - Form 10-K/A

software, consulting, training, and support agreements is allocated to each
element based on its relative fair value (or in the absence of fair wvalue, the
residual method) and recognized when the revenue recognition criteria have been
met for each element. HP recognizes revenue for delivered elements only when
the following criteria are satisfied: (1) undelivered elements are not
essential to the functionality of delivered elements, (2) uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance are resolved, and (3) the fair value for all
undelivered elements is known.

Shipping and Handling

Costs related to shipping and handling are included in cost of sales for all
periods presented.
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Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $1.0 billion in
2001, $1.1 billion in 2000 and $1.3 billion in 1999.

Taxes on Earnings

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax
consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their reported amounts using enacted tax rates in effect for
the year the differences are expected to reverse. HP records a valuation
allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely
than not to be recognized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

HP classifies investments as cash equivalents if the original maturity of an
investment is three months or less from the purchase date.

Inventory

Inventory is wvalued at the lower of cost or market with cost computed on a
first-in, first-out basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Additions, improvements and major renewals are capitalized.
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. Depreciation
is provided using accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Estimated useful lives are 15 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements and 3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated using the straight-line method over the life of
the lease or the asset, whichever is shorter. Leased equipment is depreciated
using the straight-line method over the initial term of the operating lease to
its estimated residual value.
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Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Goodwill related to acquisitions prior to July 1, 2001 and purchased
intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the
estimated economic lives of the assets, ranging from two to ten years. Goodwill
related to acquisitions after June 30, 2001 is not amortized.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
purchased intangibles, are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset plus net
proceeds expected from disposition of the asset (if any) are less than the
carrying value of the asset. When an impairment is identified, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its fair wvalue.

Capitalized Software

HP capitalizes certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire or
create internal use software, principally related to software coding, designing
system interfaces, and installation and testing of the software. Capitalized
costs are amortized over three years.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

HP enters into derivative financial instrument contracts to hedge certain
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures. On November 1, 2000, HP adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." The cumulative effect of
adopting SFAS 133 was not material to HP's consolidated financial statements.
See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a full description of
HP's hedging activities and related accounting policies.

Investments

HP's investments principally consist of time deposits, municipal securities,
repurchase agreements and other debt securities, as well as equity securities
of public and privately-held companies. Investments with maturities of less
than one year are classified as short-term investments.

Debt securities that HP has the ability and intent to hold until maturity
are accounted for as held-to-maturity securities and are carried at amortized
cost. The remainder of HP's debt securities and its equity investments in
public companies are classified as available-for-sale securities and carried at
fair value. For the majority of available-for-sale securities, unrealized gains
and losses, net of taxes, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. The remainder of available-for-sale securities are hedged and changes
in fair value of these securities are recognized in earnings and offset by
gains or losses on the related derivative instruments.
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Equity investments in privately-held companies are generally carried at
cost. Equity investments in companies over which HP has the ability to exercise
significant influence, but does not hold a controlling interest, are accounted
for under the equity method and HP's proportionate share of income or losses is
recorded in interest and other, net.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject HP to significant
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, investments,
accounts receivable, financing receivables, derivatives and certain other
financial instruments.

HP maintains cash and cash equivalents, short- and long-term investments,
derivatives and certain other financial instruments with various financial
institutions. These financial institutions are located in many different
geographical regions, and company policy is designed to limit exposure with any
one institution. As part of its cash and risk management processes, HP performs
periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of the financial
institutions. HP has not sustained material credit losses from instruments held
at financial institutions.

HP sells a significant portion of its products through third-party
distributors and resellers and, as a result, maintains individually significant
receivable balances with these parties. If the financial condition or
operations of these distributors and resellers deteriorate substantially, HP's
operating results could be adversely affected. The ten largest distributor and
reseller receivable balances collectively represented 28% of total accounts
receivable at October 31, 2001 and 31% at October 31, 2000. Credit risk with
respect to other accounts receivable and financing receivables is generally
diversified due to the large number of entities comprising HP's customer base
and their dispersion across many different industries and geographical regions.
HP performs ongoing credit evaluations of its third-party distributors',
resellers' and other customers' financial condition and requires collateral,
such as letters of credit and bank guarantees, in certain circumstances.
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Foreign Currency Translation

HP uses the U.S. dollar as its functional currency. Foreign currency assets
and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at end-of-period exchange
rates, except for inventory, property, plant and equipment, other assets and
deferred revenue, which are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Revenue
and expenses are remeasured at average exchange rates in effect during each
period, except for those expenses related to the previously noted balance sheet
amounts, which are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gains or losses
from foreign currency remeasurement are included in net earnings.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net earnings as well as other comprehensive
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income. HP's other comprehensive income consists of unrealized gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities and, effective in fiscal 2001, unrealized
gains and losses on derivative instruments, both recorded net of tax.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to
conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS
No. 141, "Business Combinations"™ and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets." SFAS 141 requires that all business combinations be
accounted for by the purchase method of accounting and changes the criteria for
recognition of intangible assets acquired in a business combination. The
provisions of SFAS 141 apply to all business combinations initiated after June
30, 2001. HP does not expect that the adoption of SFAS 141 will have a material
effect on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. SFAS
142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
no longer be amortized; however, these assets must be reviewed at least
annually for impairment. Intangible assets with finite useful lives will
continue to be amortized over their respective useful lives. The standard also
establishes specific guidance for testing for impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The provisions of SFAS 142 will
be effective for HP's fiscal year 2003, with early adoption permitted at the
beginning of HP's fiscal year 2002. However, goodwill and intangible assets
acquired after June 30, 2001 are subject immediately to the non-amortization
provisions of SFAS 142. HP is currently in the process of evaluating the
potential impact that the adoption of SFAS 142 will have on its consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." SFAS 144 amends existing
accounting guidance on asset impairment and provides a single accounting model
for long-lived assets to be disposed of. Among other provisions, the new rules
change the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale. The standard
also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for
reporting as discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing
losses on such operations. The provisions of SFAS 144 will be effective for
HP's fiscal year 2003 and will be applied prospectively. HP is currently in the
process of evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS 144 will
have on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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Note 2: Net Earnings Per Share

HP's basic earnings per share ("EPS") is calculated based on net earnings
and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the reporting
period. Diluted EPS includes additional dilution from potential issuance of
common stock, such as stock issuable pursuant to the exercise of stock options
outstanding and the conversion of debt. All share and per-share amounts reflect
the retroactive effects of the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock
dividend effective October 27, 2000.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the numerators and

denominators of the basic and diluted EPS calculations.

For the years ended October 31
In millions, except per share data

Numerator:

Net earnings from continuing operations before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle. ...ttt e e e e e e e

Adjustment for interest expense on zero-coupon
subordinated convertible notes, net of income tax
= o

Net earnings from continuing operations before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, adjusted......... ...

Net earnings from discontinued operations................

Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of
debt, nNet O0f LaAXES ..t i ittt ittt ettt et teeeneeanns

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
[ = =

Net earnings, adjusted. .. ...ttt it eeneeeeeeeenns

Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used to compute basic EPS........
Effect of dilutive securities:
Dilutive options and other stock-based awards........
Zero—coupon subordinated convertible notes...........

Dilutive potential common shares..........oiiuiiiieeeeennn
Weighted-average shares used to compute diluted EPS......

Basic net earnings per share:

Net earnings from continuing operations before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle. ...ttt ittt e e e e e e e

Net earnings from discontinued operations................

Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of
debt, nNet Of LaAXEeS ... i ittt ittt ittt ettt ee e e eaeeanns

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
Lo = <= =

Net EarNInNg S . i ittt ittt e ettt te et eeaeeeeeaeenns

Diluted net earnings per share:

Net earnings from continuing operations before
extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle. ...ttt e e e e e e e

Net earnings from discontinued operations................

Extraordinary item--gain on early extinguishment of
debt, nNet Of LaAXeS ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ee e e eaeeanns

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
Lo = <= T

Net EarnNInNg S . .ttt ettt et ettt ettt eeaeeeeeaeenns

2001 2000 1999
$ 624 $3,561 $3,104
16 31 22
640 3,592 3,126

- 136 387
56 - --
(272) - -

$ 424 $3,728 $3,513
1,936 1,979 2,018
20 72 65

18 26 22

38 98 87
1,974 2,077 2,105
$0.32 $1.80 $ 1.54
- 0.07 0.19
0.03 - --
(0.14) - -
$0.21 $1.87 $ 1.73
$0.32 $ 1.73 $ 1.49
- 0.07 0.18
0.03 - --
(0.14) - -
$0.21 $ 1.80 $ 1.67
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Note 2: Net Earnings Per Share (Continued)

The shares issuable upon exercise of certain of HP's stock options were
excluded from the calculation of diluted net earnings per share because the
exercise price of these options was greater than the average market price of
the common shares for the respective fiscal years, and therefore the effect
would have been antidilutive. The shares issuable upon exercise of such options
that were excluded were 147,583,000 in 2001, 37,666,000 in 2000 and 1,817,000
in 1999.

Note 3: Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2001, HP's management approved restructuring actions to respond to
the global economic downturn and to improve HP's cost structure by streamlining
operations and prioritizing resources in strategic areas of HP's business. The
company recorded a restructuring charge of $384 million to reflect these
actions. This charge consisted of severance and other employee benefits related
to the planned termination of approximately 7,500 employees worldwide, across
many regions, business functions, and job classes, as well as costs related to
the consolidation of excess facilities. Included as an offset to this charge
was $38 million of related net pension and post-retirement settlement and
curtailment gains. As of October 31, 2001, 5,700 employees were terminated and
HP had paid out $238 million of the accrued costs. HP also made additional
payments of $26 million in fiscal 2001 related to restructuring charges accrued
in fiscal 2000. HP expects to pay out the remainder of the accrual in fiscal
2002.

In fiscal 2000, HP's management approved an enhanced early retirement
("EER") program designed to balance the workforce based on HP's long-term
business strategy. HP offered approximately 2,500 U.S. employees the
opportunity to retire early and receive an enhanced payout, and approximately
1,300 employees accepted the offer. Accordingly, HP recorded a restructuring
charge of $71 million, consisting of $100 million of severance and other
employee benefits offset by $29 million of related pension and post-retirement
settlement and curtailment gains. In addition to the EER program, HP incurred
$31 million of other restructuring charges during fiscal 2000 related to
various site shutdowns resulting from strategic management decisions. In fiscal
2000, HP made payments of $98 million related to the restructuring charges
accrued during the year, of which $95 million was paid through HP's pension
plan based on an amendment to the plan.

As of October 31, 2001, the balance of the accrued restructuring charges
recorded in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000 consisted of the following:

Employee Severance Facility
and Other Consolidations
Related Benefits and Other Total
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(In millions)

Balance at November 1, 1999........... S - $ —- s -
Restructuring charges, net......... 97 5 102
Funded through pension plan........ (95) - (95)
Cash payments.......c.ouiiiiieeennn. (3) —= (3)
Non-cash gains, net................ 27 (5) 22

Balance at October 31, 2000........... 26 —— 26
Restructuring charges, net......... 372 12 384
Cash payments........ouiiiiieeeenn. (264) —— (264)
Non-cash gains, net................ 12 - 12

Balance at October 31, 2001........... $ 146 S 12 $ 158
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Note 3: Restructuring Charges (Continued)

Non-cash gains, net, related to employee severance and other related
benefits include net pension and post-retirement settlement and curtailment
gains offset by charges related to stock-based compensation.

Note 4: Net Investment (Losses) Gains

HP's investment portfolio includes equity and debt investments in public and
privately-held emerging technology companies. Many of these emerging technology
companies are still in the start-up or development stage. HP's investments in
these companies are inherently risky because the markets for the technologies
or products they have under development are typically in the early stages and
may never develop.

HP monitors its investment portfolio for impairment on a periodic basis. In
the event that the carrying value of an investment exceeds its fair value and
the decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment
charge is recorded and a new cost basis for the investment is established. Fair
values for investments in public companies are determined using quoted market
prices. Fair values for investments in privately-held companies are estimated
based upon one or more of the following: pricing models using historical and
forecasted financial information and current market rates, liquidation values,
the values of recent rounds of financing, or quoted market prices of comparable
public companies. In order to determine whether a decline in value is
other-than-temporary, HP evaluates, among other factors: the duration and
extent to which the fair value has been less than carrying value; the financial
condition of and business outlook for the company, including key operational
and cash flow metrics, current market conditions and future trends in the
company's industry, and the company's relative competitive position within the
industry; and HP's intent and ability to retain the investment for a period of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Due to the economic downturn, the decline in value of certain investments in
emerging technology companies was determined to be other-than-temporary.
Accordingly, HP recorded impairment losses of $471 million on its investments
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in both public and private emerging technology companies in fiscal 2001. This
amount was offset by $16 million of realized gains on the sale of equity
securities, resulting in net investment losses of $455 in fiscal 2001. As of
October 31, 2001, the carrying value of the portion of HP's remaining
investment portfolio related to emerging technology companies was $243 million.
Depending on market conditions, HP may incur additional charges on this
investment portfolio in the future.

In fiscal 2000, HP recorded $41 million of net gains on investments,
representing gains on sales of equity investments of $104 million, net of
impairment losses of $63 million. In fiscal 1999, HP recorded $31 million of
realized gains on sales of equity investments.

Note 5: Discontinued Operations

On March 2, 1999, HP announced its intention to launch a new company,
subsequently named Agilent Technologies, through a distribution of Agilent
Technologies common stock to HP's stockholders in the form of a tax—-free
spin-off. Agilent Technologies was composed of HP's former Measurement
Organization, which included the test-and-measurement, semiconductor products,
chemical analysis and healthcare solutions businesses. Effective July 31, 1999,
HP's management and Board of Directors completed the plan of disposition for
Agilent Technologies. HP's consolidated financial statements for all periods
present Agilent Technologies as a discontinued business segment through the
spin-off date of June 2, 2000.

In November 1999, Agilent Technologies completed an initial public offering
of approximately 16% of its common stock and distributed the net proceeds of
approximately $2.1 billion to HP. HP distributed substantially all of its
remaining interest in Agilent Technologies through a stock dividend to HP
stockholders on June 2, 2000, resulting in a $4.2 billion reduction of retained
earnings.
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Net earnings from discontinued operations for fiscal 2000 were $136 million.
In the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the cumulative net earnings of Agilent
Technologies since the July 31, 1999 measurement date began to exceed the total
estimated net costs to effect the spin-off. Of the $136 million, net earnings
of Agilent Technologies for the period from the July 31, 1999 measurement date
through the June 2, 2000 spin-off date totaled $287 million (net of related tax
expense of $174 million), and the net costs to effect the spin-off were $151
million (net of related tax benefit of $23 million). Net earnings from
discontinued operations for fiscal year 1999 consisted only of the net earnings
of Agilent Technologies.

Note 6: Acquisitions and Divestitures
Completed Acquisitions
In January 2001, HP acquired all of the outstanding stock of Bluestone

Software, Inc. ("Bluestone") in exchange for HP common stock and options. The
total consideration was $531 million, which included the fair value of HP

66



Edgar Filing: HEWLETT PACKARD CO - Form 10-K/A

common stock issued and options assumed, as well as direct transaction costs.
With this acquisition, HP expanded its Internet software offering by adding
Bluestone's XML-based web application server and tools to its portfolio,
forming the core of HP's middleware offering. The acquisition was recorded
under the purchase method of accounting, and accordingly the purchase price was
allocated to the tangible assets and liabilities and intangible assets
acquired, including in-process research and development, based on their
estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over those fair values was
recorded as goodwill. The fair value assigned to intangible assets acquired was
based on a valuation prepared by an independent third party appraisal firm. HP
recorded approximately $338 million of goodwill and identified intangibles in
conjunction with the transaction. Amortization of the goodwill, which
represents a majority of these intangible assets, will cease upon HP's adoption
of SFAS 142. In addition, HP recorded a pre-tax charge of approximately $19
million for in-process research and development at the time of acquisition in
the first quarter of fiscal 2001 because technological feasibility had not been
established and no future alternative uses existed.

In September 2001, HP acquired all of the outstanding stock of StorageApps
Inc. in exchange for HP common stock and options. The total consideration was
$319 million, which included the fair value of HP common stock issued and
options assumed, as well as direct transaction costs. This acquisition
strengthens HP's storage offering by adding virtualization technology, which is
a key component of HP's Federated Storage Area Management ("FSAM") strategy.
FSAM is designed to give customers the ability to expand storage capacity
without increasing the number of employees, and storage virtualization
technology is designed to allow customers to easily mix and match their storage
needs from different vendors. The acquisition was recorded under the purchase
method of accounting, and accordingly the purchase price was allocated to the
tangible assets and liabilities and intangible assets acquired, including
in-process research and development, based on their estimated fair values. The
excess purchase price over those fair values was recorded as goodwill. The fair
value assigned to intangible assets acquired was based on a valuation prepared
by an independent third party appraisal firm. HP recorded approximately
$296 million of goodwill and identified intangibles in conjunction with the
transaction. The goodwill recorded as a result of this transaction is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. In accordance with SFAS 142,
goodwill, which represents the majority of these intangible assets, will not be
amortized but will be reviewed periodically for impairment. In addition, HP
recorded a pre-tax charge of approximately $15 million for in-process research
and development at the time of acquisition in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001
because technological feasibility had not been established and no future
alternative uses existed.

Results of operations for each of the acquired companies are included
prospectively from the date of acquisition. Pro forma results of operations

reflecting these acquisitions have not been presented because the

57

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Note 6: Acquisitions and Divestitures (Continued)

results of operations of the acquired companies, either individually or
collectively, are not material to HP's results of operations.

HP also acquired other companies during fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 that were
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not significant to its financial position or results of operations. Each of
these acquisitions was recorded under the purchase method of accounting.

The net book value of goodwill and purchased intangible assets was $756
million at October 31, 2001, of which $297 million is not subject to
amortization in accordance with SFAS 142. The net book value of goodwill and
purchased intangible assets was $224 million at October 31, 2000, and $189
million at October 31, 1999, all of which is subject to amortization until
adoption of SFAS 142. Accumulated amortization related to these assets was
$1,171 million at October 31, 2001, $997 million at October 31, 2000 and $911
million at October 31, 1999. Amortization expense for goodwill and purchased
intangible assets was $174 million in 2001, $86 million in 2000 and $59 million
in 1999.

Pending Acquisitions

In September 2001, HP signed a definitive agreement with Compag Computer
Corporation ("Compaqg") to acquire all of the outstanding stock of Compaqg in
exchange for 0.6325 shares of HP common stock for each outstanding share of
Compaq stock and the assumption of options based on the same exchange ratio.
The estimated purchase price is $24 billion, which includes the estimated fair
value of HP common stock issued and options assumed, as well as estimated
direct transaction costs. This estimate was derived using an average market
price per share of HP common stock of $20.92, which was based on an average of
the closing prices for a range of trading days (August 30, August 31, September
4, and September 5, 2001) around the announcement date (September 3, 2001) of
the proposed merger. The final purchase price will be determined based upon the
number of Compaq shares and options outstanding at the closing date. Compaqg is
a leading global provider of enterprise technology and solutions. Completion of
the Compag merger is subject to customary closing conditions that include,
among others, receipt of required approvals from HP's shareowners and from
Compaq shareowners, and receipt of required regulatory approvals. The
transaction, while expected to close in the first half of calendar year 2002,
may not be completed if any of the conditions is not satisfied. Under certain
terms specified in the merger agreement, HP or Compaq may terminate the
agreement, and as a result either HP or Compaqg may be required to pay a $675
million termination fee to the other party in certain circumstances. Unless
otherwise indicated, the discussions in this document relate to HP as a
stand-alone entity and do not reflect the impact of the pending business
combination transaction with Compaq.

In September 2001, HP signed a definitive agreement with Indigo N.V.
("Indigo") to commence an exchange offer to acquire all of the outstanding
shares of Indigo not already owned by HP (the "Shares") in exchange for a
combination of shares of HP's common stock and non-transferable contingent
value rights ("CVR") entitling the holder to a one-time contingent cash payment
of up to $4.50 per CVR, based on the achievement by the Indigo business of a
cumulative revenue milestone over a three-year post-closing period. Based on
the terms of the agreement, current assumptions on the quantity of each
consideration alternative, and HP's average closing share price for the 20-day
period ended December 31, 2001, the estimated consideration to acquire the
Shares is approximately $720 million plus approximately 56 million CVRs. The
$720 million consideration amount includes the estimated fair value of HP
common stock issued and options and warrants assumed, as well as estimated
direct transaction costs. The future cash pay-out, if any, of the CVRs will be
determined and payable after a three-year period commencing shortly after the
closing of the exchange offer. Indigo is a leading provider of high performance
digital color printing. The completion of this transaction is subject to the
tender for exchange of that number of Indigo shares which, when added to Indigo
shares currently
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owned by HP, will constitute at least 95% of Indigo's outstanding shares, the

receipt of required regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions. The
transaction, while expected to close in the first half of calendar year 2002,

may not be completed if any of the conditions is not satisfied.

Completed Divestitures

In fiscal 2001, the net loss fro